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COMMISSION ON CIVIL RIGHTS t

TUESDAY MORNING SESSION

September 27, 1960

The Commission met in Room 222, U. S. Circult
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Orleans, Loulslana, at 9:30 a.m., Tuesday, September 27, 1960,

Dr. John A. Hannah, Chairman of the Commission, presiding.
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PROCEEDINGES

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: Ladies and gentlemen, I am
John A. Hannah, the Chairman of the Commission on Civil Rights,
and I should like to present the members of the Commission.

On my left, your right, is Professor Robert Rankin
of Duke Unilversity of North Carolina.

Next to him, Governor Carlton, former Governor of
Florida, from Tampa, Florida.

On my left, the Vice Chailrman of the Commission,
Dean Robert F. Storey of Dallas, Texas, former President of
the American Bar Assoclation and long-time Dean of Southern
Methodist University.

On my immediate right, Dean George Johnson, former
Dean of the Law School of Howard University, Washington, D.C.,
-and a native of California.

On the extreme right, Father Theodore M. Hesburgh,
President of fthe University of Notre Dame, who has returned
all the way from an internationzal meeting in Vienna which
he left yesterday afternoon in order to be here today.

The Commission on Civil Rights, established under
the Civil Rights Act of 1957, is charged with the fixed
responsibllity to investigate allegations in writing, under
oath or affirmation, that certain citizens of the United
States are being deprived of their right to vote and have

that vote counted by reason of their color, race, religion,



or national origin.

The Commission has the further respgnsibility
under this statute to study and collect information concern-
ing practices constituting a denial of equal protection of
the laws under the Constitution.

To fulfill these congressional mandates, the
Commission is authorizéd to hold such hearings as the Commis-
sion may deem advisable,.

Over the past two years numerous complaints that
voting rights were being denied have been received from cer-
taln parishes of the State of Louisiana, and at this point I
should like to have the record show that no voting complaints
have been recelved by this Commission involving the City of
New Orleans or Orleans Parish.

Over a year ago a preliminary investigation un-
covered information which led the Commission to unanimous
agreement that a hearing should be scheduled for July 1959
fo gather facts concerning the voting situation in several
parishes in the State of Louisiana.

As many of you know, we were ready to proceed with
the hearing but were enjolned from doing so by the Féderal
District Court for the Eastern District of Louilsiana.

The question in issue before that court concerned
the rules of procedure used by this Commission in the conduct

of 1ts hearing.



The basic fairness of the Commission's hearings
and its rules of procedure were sanctioned by the Supreme
Court. The Vice Chairman of this Commission, Dean Storey,
will have more to say about the Supreéeme Court decision in a
few moments.

Subsequent to the decision of the United States
Supreme Court, this Commission declded, upon re-investigation
of the outstanding complaints, along with investigation of
complaints received since July of 1959, that a hearing was
still necessary.

We felt that an obJjectlve appraisal of the voting
situation in certain parishes of Loulisiana could not be made
without such a hearing, and it should be noted that the
Commission on Civil Rights 1s an independent agency of the
government. It has no connection, even administratively,
with the Department of Justice or with any other enforce-
ment agency.

This Commission is a fact-finding body, obligated
to determine, among other things, what the facts are about
denial of voting rights in the United States and to report
these facts to the President and Congress on or before
September 9, 1961. Prosecutions, indictments -- indeed, law
enforcement in any form whatsoever -- are beyond the power
of this Commission. The firm resolve of this Commission and

1ts staff is to be objective.
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As the Commission views 1%, objectivity presupposes
getting all of the fécts.

The Commission does not consider itself a protagonist
for one view or another, and in that connection, I would
point ocut that of the six members of this Commission, three
are from the south and three from the north. Politically
the Commission is composed of three Democrats, two Republi-
cans, and one independent.

The Commission was established in the hope that
through a dispassionate evaulation and appraisal of the
facts, reason and light could be brought to bear upon prob-
lems of national importance which until recently have been
frequently and passionately debated but seldom assessed
soberly.

This Commission is keenly aware of strides taken
throughout the south in recent years by way of assuring equal
access to the ballot. Not many years ago, in many parts of
the south, only white citizens were permitted to vote, and
while the situatlion has improved in many ar;as, we have found
that many otherwise qualified Negro American citizens are
still being denied opportunity to vote because of their race,

This Commission, belng of the resolute conviction
that the uninhibited right of all citizens to exercise the

voting franchise equally is fundamental in a democracy and

essential to the preservation of our constitutional form of
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goverament, it is determined to glean the true facts where,
as in this case, proper allegations have been made reflect-
ing possible denials of the right to register, to vote, and
to have that vote counted because of race or color.

This hearing then is Just such an attempt, %o
ascertain about voting in Louislana. Loulsiana was not select-
ed because of any predisposition on our part to single outb
fhis state for criticism or for censure., It was selected
because the Act under whilch we operate requires that we
investigate valid voting complaints, and a large number of
such complaints have come from Loulsiana, This Commission
has already held hearings on civil rights problems in a num-
ber of other states, and in 1958 a two-day hearing was held
in Alabama regarding voting complaints recelved from that
state.

Now I am asking the Vice Chairman of this Commis-
sion, who 1s a distinguished attorney, a former President of
the American Bar Assoclation and former Dean of the Law
School of Southern Methodist University in Dallas, Texas),
and president of the Southwestern Legal Foundation, to take
over and preside at this hearing from this point forward.

I should point out that two other members of the
Commlssion are distinguished attorneys, Gove:nor Carlton
of Tampa, Florida on my lef't,and Dean Johnéo% of Howard

University on my right.



Father Hesburgh and Dr. Rankin and I have
decided that, not belng attorneys, we may participate in the
questioning of the wltnesses from time to time,but in general
we will rely upon the laywer members of this Commission to
bring out the fac%sa

Vice Chairman Storey, in accordance wlth the unani-
mous desire of this Commission, will you please take over
this hearing from this point forward?

(Vice Chairman Storey assumed the Chair at this point.)
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Mr. Chalrman, thank
you. Members of the Commission, our staff, ladies and
gentlemen: Let me reiterate what the chalirman has already
stated, QOur Commisslon was designed to find facts and to
report our findings, along with our recommendations, to the
President of the United States and to the Congress.

We have recelved many sworn complaints in proper
form from Negro American citizens living in a number of
Louisiana parlshes which allege denlal of the right to vote
or to register upon the grounds of race and color.,

Our purprose is to secure a full and true account
of these complaints under oath. That is why we are holding
this hearing. To dispel whatever uncertainty may remain
in the minds of any of you here today, I believe it will be

well to state again that our Commission has no power to

grant to any person his or her right to vote or to register

or to undertake any action to compel anyone else to confer



such right upon any citizen.

Our role is a fact-finding misslon. The chalrman
has referred to the resistance encountered by our Commission
with a special focus on the rules of procedﬁreo These rules
were abttacked in the summer of 1959 by officials of the
State of Louislana. The . Supreme Court of the United States
held on June 20, 1960 that the Civil Rights Act of 1957
authorized the Commission on Civlil Rights to adopt the rules
of procedure to govern and to conduct its hearings. The
court decided that the rules adopted by our Commission violate
no constitutional right of any witness subpenaed to testif'y
at a Commission hearing.

This decision was bottomed on a recognition that
the function of our Commisslon 1s purely investigative and
fact-finding. It is not adjudicatory; it is not an adversary
proceeding.

The hold;ng of the court is made clear in the fol-
lowing language, and I quote briefly: "The Commission does
not hold trials or determine anyone's civil or criminal lia-
bility. It does not issue orders; nor does 1% indict, punish,
or impose any legal sanctions. It does not make any determina-
tions depriving anyone of his 1life, liberty, or property.

In short, the Commission does not and cannot take any
affirmative action which will affect any individual's legal

rights.
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"'Phe only purpose of ibs existence is to find Tacts
which may subsequently be used as a basis for legislative
or executive action."

The court further noted, quoting again, "The
purely investigative nature of the Commission's proceedings
and the traditional procedure of investigating agencies in
general leads us to conclude that the Commission's rules of
procedure comport with the requirements of due process.,"

Lest there be any lingering misconception about the
nature of the Commisslon's purpose, it is worth reading one
additional passage from the concurring opinion of the
Supreme Court, and this is the quote: "Were the Commission
exerclsing any accusatory function, were its duty to find
that named individuals were responsible for wrongful depriva~
tion of voting rights and to advertise such findings or %o
serve as a part of the process of criminal prosecution, the
rigorous protections relevant to criminal prosecutions might
well be the controlling starting point for assessing the
protection which the Commission's procedure provides. The
objectives of the Commission on Civil Rights, the purpose of
its creatlon, and 1ts true functioning, are quite otherwise.
It is not charged with offiqial Judgment on individuals, nor
are its inquiries so directed. The purpose of its investiga-

tions is to develop facts upon which legislation may be based."

Each wiltness subpenaed for this hearing received a
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copy of Rules of Procedure at the time when he was served
with the subpenan We have sent a copy of our Rules of
Procedure to the Attorney General of Louisiana, and I am sure
that his assistants, who are here, and the Attorney General
are cognizant of this fact, so that all involved, directly
or indirectly, will understand the procedure thoroughly.

Let me discuss for a moment some of the specific
rules,

Constitutlional rights of witnesses will be protected
fully as provided by; our statute, which reads, agailn quoting
from the rules: "Witnesses at the hearings may be accom-
panied by their own counsel for the purpose of advising them
concerning their constitutional rights." Examination of
rights will be undertaken by the Commiséion itself since
this is not an adversary proceeding. There will be no
examination of witnesses by persons other than members of
the Commission, or, as the Commission may authorlize, specific
staff personnel.

I must stress at the outset that the nature of
this proceeding, being fact-finding and non adversary, does
not allow for any counsel to take part in the questlioning or
to make speeches or arguments. Counsel may, of course; slt
by the side of the witness who is his client and advise him
of his constitutional rights respecting any question put to

him by this Commission.
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The testimony taken at this hearing will be under
oath. The oath will be administered at the time each wit-
ness 1s called %o testify. A transcript of the testimony of
all witnesses wlll be made, Each witness has the right to
inspect the record of his own testimony, if requested.
Furthermore, a wltness may purchase a copy at a nominal prlce
of his testimony, and a transcript copy of public sessions
may be obtalned by any citizen upon payment of the cost.

Shouldthe Commission determine that any evidence
or testimony may tend to defame, degrade, or intimidate any
person, the Commission shall: 1. Recelve such evidence or
testimony 1in executive session; 2, Afford such person an
opportunity voluntarily to appear as a witnes8; 3. Recelve
and dispose of requests from such person to subpena addl-
tional witnesses,

Evidence or testimony taken in executlve session
wlll not nor can it be released or used.without the consent
of the Commission.

You will observe that representatives of the press,
radio, TV, and other news media are present. These gentlemen
will be expected to conduct themselves in a quiet, cooperative
fashion as they have done in the past. In this regard, our
rules provide that, quoting again: 'Subject to the physical

limitations of the hearing room and consideration of the

physical comfort of Commission members, staff, and witnesses,
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equal and reasonable access for coverage of the hearing shall
be provided to the various means of communication, including
newspapers, magazines, radio, newsreels, and television.
However, no witness shall be televised, fllmed, or photo;
graphed during the hearing if he objects on the grounds of
distraction, harrassment, or physical handicap,"

OQur rules provide further Ghat any witness desir-
ing.to read a prepared statement 1n the hearing shall file a
copy with the Commission or subcommittee 24 hours in advance
of the scheduled hearing.

"The Commission or subcommittee" again quoting
from the law, "of the Commission is empowered to decide
whether to permit the reading of such statement.”

wﬁile coples of these rules have been made avail-
able to any and all interested persons, I have invited your
attention to certain provisions, trusting that this will in-
crease your awareness of our procedure and thereby create
greater appreciation that our resolve is to treat all wit-~
nesses with the utmost fairness, While this hearing is in-
formal, 1t will be conducted in an orderly manner without
undue or lmproper inbterruption or interference,

At this time I would like to introduce the Staff
Director of the Commission, Mr. Gordon M, Tiffany -+ will
you stand up, Mr, Tiffany -~ who will indicate =--.and you may

be seated at this time, thankyou -- who will indicate the
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outliné of this hearing and who will call upon various

members of the staff to carry oubt our responsibilities.

Finally, let me restate the issue before this fact-
finding body: Are certain citizens of the Unlted States

being deprived of their right to vote and to have that vote

counted by reason of race, color, religion, or national origin,

Mr, Tiffany, ﬁill you take over at this time?
MR, TIFFANY: Mr. Chairman, Vice Chairman Story,

members of the Commission: This hearing is convened as a

result of the unanimous decision of the Commission at its

meeting in Washingbton, held on August 4, 1960. 1In effect it
should be viewed as a continuation of the hearing scheduled
forduly 1959 in Shrevepori., These proceedings have been held
in abeyance pending the dissolution of the injunctions issued
by the U, S. District Court JudgesBen. C. Dawkins, Jr., and
the three-judge District Court,

For the record, I now submit the orders vacating

the injunctlions in those proceedings followlng the declsion

in Hannah vs. Larche by the United States Supreme Court.

This 1is submitted as Commlssion's Exhibits Numbers 1 and 2,
{The documents referred to
were marked for identifica-
tion as Exhibits 1 and 2.)

MR, TIFFANY: The Commission®*s Rules, as already

pointed out, permit statements to he submitted for consideration
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2l hours in advance of the hearing.

However, as of the present time, only one such
statement has been recelved; and this will be called to the
attention of the Commission for its conslderation 1ln due
course,

The evidence to be presented at these hearings will
fall into three categories: Filrst;, oral testimony by
complalnants based upon their own knowledge that they or
other ciltizens have been denled the right to register, vote,
or to have thelr vote counted because of thelr race or color,

Second, documentary evidence, collected and verl-
fled by the Commissionf®s staff, which tends to support the
allegations of denials of the right to vote. Third, charts
and graphs prepared on the basis of authentlc and official
sources.,

As to the first type of evidence, I have asked the
Asslistant Staff Director in charge of complalnts, investi-
gation, and surveys, Colonel A, H. Rosenfeld to introduce
the witnesses who have been subpenaed to testify as to thelr
experiences in several different parishes in Lduisiana. This
testiﬁony will show the various ways in whilch the right to
vote has allegedly been denied,

In introducing the wilitnesses, Colonel Rosenfeld
will preface the testimony by introductory comment as to the

relevancy of the statement to the issues presented before the
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Commission.

Generally these witnesses will be identified by
thelr parish.

As to the documentary evidence, I have asked
Deputy Staff Director, Mr, Berl I. Bernhard, to submlt cer-
tain documents relating to the statubtory obligation of the
Commission to study and collect information concerning legal
developments constitutling the denial of equal protection of
the laws under the Constitutlon.

Third, as to the presentation of charts and graphs,
these have been prepared to save time and to present effec-
tively a mass of official and historical data which should
be helpful to the Commission in its fact-finding and report-
ing duties.

In the offer of documentary and graphic evidence,
Mr. Bernhard will be assisted by Mr. William Mottolese, a
member of the staff in the Dlivislion of Laws, Plans; and
Research.

Before the lntroduction of evidence, I would like
to emphasize that this Commisslon is equally concerned, not
only with the continuance, but with the discontinuance, of
practices relating to the equal protection of the franchise
wlthout regard to race, creed, color, or national origin.

If, after the close of the hearings, the witnesses

subpenaed to testify here at this time are later granted the
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right to vote or are the subject of further sanction. we
would expect them to furnish such further information under
oath to the Commission as to such subsegquent developments.

I will now call on Mr, Bernhard to offer, in the
first instance, some documentary evidence.

MR, BERNHARD: May it please the Commission, in
order to galn some historical perspective as to the present
status of the Negro vote in the State of Louisiana, 1t is
helpful to trace the strength of the Negro vote from the
reconstruction era to the present time and compare this to
the white vote,

For thils purpose I would like ©to have marked
as Exhibit A-l, the official registration statistlcs of the
State of Louisiana from the period 1888 until the present.

{The document referred to
was marked for identifica-
tion as Exhibit A-1.)

MR, BERNHARD: Secondly, I would l1like fo have
marked as Exhiblt A-2 a chart which is based on the officilal
registration statlistics of the State of Lioulsiana, as well
as the literacy figures published by the United States
Bureau of the Census.

(The document referred to
was marked for ldentifica-

tion as Exhibit A-2.)
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MR, BERNHARD: VYou will observe that the chart

starts in year 1888 and runs to the period 1960,

Let me explain the various lines first. The red
line represents the per cent of the Negro registered voter
over age 21.

The green llne represents the per cent of the white
voting age voter; that is, age 21.

The black line represents the per cent of liferacy
of the Negro aged 21 and over traced historically from 1888
o 1960,

With the Commission's approval, I should like %o
interpret this graph, which I believe will put into proper
context the subsequent evidence to be recelved through oral
testimony,

You will observe that from the period 1888 until
1910, the per cent of registered Negroes dropped from 53 per
cent untlil one per cent; whereas, the per cent of white
voter dropped from 40 per cent to 25 per cent.

From the 45-year period commencing in 1910 and
extending through 1944, the per cent of the registered Negro
age 21 and over -- that is, those who were registered --
never exceeded one per cent of thg Negroes who were poten-
tially otherwise of voting age.

During the saﬁe period you will ohserve that the per

cent of white registration rose from 25 per cent up until 80
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per cent.

During the same period when the ﬁegro registra~
tion did not exceed one per cent, the growth of llteracy of
the same vobing age Negro rose some 30 per cent, from 48
per cent in 1910 to 78 per cent in 1944,

I might add that during thils entire period the
per cent of Negro age 21 and over 1n the State of Loulslana
never was below 34 per cent of the total voting population.

In the ten-year perlod following World War II; that
,ﬁs, approximately 1944 or 1945 through 1954, Negro reglstration
rose from one per cent to 27 per cent in 1954.

The white reglstratlon fluctuated between a high of
86 per cent and a low of 67 per cent.

You willl also observe that during this same period,
the ten-~year period following World War II, the literacy of
the Negro rose to 82 per cent.

In sumary, let me state that during the entire
period, namely, from 1898 until 1960; that 1s, the 62-year
period, Negro registration never has exceeded 28 per cent of
the poéential voting age Negro; that during 34 years of the
62-year perilod the Negro age 21 and over registered to vote
remained at approxiﬁately one per cent.

During the entire period from 1898 right through
1960, Negro literacy rose some 49 per cent; that is, from

33 per cent until it is presently 82 per cent.
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I submit that this chart speaks for itself and
further suggests the possibllity that There are certain forces
operating in this state to perpetuate the conditions which
are reflected by this chart by way of imposlng certain
artifical restrictions on the participation of the Negro in
the franchilse,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Mr. Bernhard, may I ask you
two or tThree questions?

As I understand, your factual background for the
delingation of the lines on the chart is substantiated by
the offlclal published state records regarding voting in
the State of Loulslana.

MR, BERNHARD: That is correct, Mr. Vice Chairman,
and they have been introduced in the record and markeéd as
Exhiblt A-1,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: That is the exhiblt you
introduced :previously.

MR. BERNHARD: That 1s correct.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Then, as I understand, thils
has been drawn mathematlcally correct, based upon the infor-
mation as dlsclosed by the public records,

MR, BERNHARD: That is correct.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: May I ask you, why was
there such a severe drop from, say, 1888 to about 19107

MR, BERNHARD: It is very difficult to pinpolnt all
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of the answers. It was a period of stabllization, subsequent
to the reconstruction era. We do know that in 1898 the
grandfather clause was put into effect, and this appears to
be one of the factors, but it was also a period when the state
again took over substantially its own control of its own
machinery.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What about the condition as
t0 the franchise in the year 1888 when %his started? Was
it a free franchise or not?

MR, BERNHARD: That is a difficult question to
answer, We do not have the type of facts that I would consilder
to be hard facts, worthy of consideration by the Commission.
It would be a historical guess or valuation at best,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: We don't want to do any
guessing.

I wonder 1if any other members of the Commission
have any questlons on this chart?

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: I might ask one gquestion,
Mr, Vice Chairman. Mr. Bernhard, your chart indicatés a
rise in the number of Negro voters beginning about 1945 or
somewhere. In your research did you come upon information
that might give us some ldeas of some of the factors that
were involved in that rise?

MR, BERNHARD: Well, we have attempted to note

some of them. In 1944, as the Commission is no doubt aware,
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the case of Smith vs. Allwright was decided, which outlawed
the white primary. In addition, during the period following
1944, and perhaps as a result of Smith vs. Allwright, which
seemed to increase the possibility of voter participation
by the Negro, various moves were instltuted by certaln people
in the State of Loulslana. We have seen, for example, com-
plaints which were filed with the Department of Justice in
1944 to the Honorable Francis Biddle, then Attorney General,
as well as Assistant Attorney General Tom Clark, who is now
in the Supreme Court, along with complainis filed in New
Orleans with the U. S. Attorney by a New Orleans lawyer,

Mr. A. P, Tureaud. These complaints included an analysis
which perhaps was one of the first analyses made of registra-
tion practices in various parishes throughout the entire
State of Loulsiana. During this same perlod of time varlous
civic organlzations began to grow up in some of the parishes.
These seemed to be some of the reasons that we have been
able to document by way of explanation.

I would polnt out, however, that the chart still
remains as 28 per cent of the total potential Negro voter., I
think i% would be worth informing the Commisslon at this
time of the recent staff investigations which likewlse bear
upon this chart and subsequent testimony you will hear.

Our staff has made an Investlgation of many parishes

in both the northern and southern portions of the state, and
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I am very pleased to be able to report to the Commission
that in the following northern parishes we have found that
there 1s very little trouble on the part of the otherwise
qualified Negro to become registered. The parishes from
which we have received these reports include Cadwell,
DeSoto, Morehouse; Sablne, and Union.

It has also been reported that the same condition
exlsts in practically all of the southern parishes in the
State of Loulsiana wlth the possible exceptions -~ or
investigations would make 1t -- with the exceptions of
Washington and Plaquemines Parish.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are there other questions?
Father Hesburgh?

COMMISSIONER HESBURGH: Mr, Bernhard, I think
possibly unintentlionally you didn't carry your explanation
of the statlstics out to the very end of the chart, and I
think for the record it might be good to give the final figures
on the chart for Negroes and whites now registered.

MR. BERNHARD: The figures now reflect that 28 per
cent of the Negro population, age 21 and over, is registered,
and the white populatilion aée 21 and over stands, I believe,
at 82 per cent. '

COMMISSIONER HESBURGH: Thank you,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other questions?

If not, the next exhilbit.
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MR, BERNHARD: A%t this point, if the Commlssion
please, I would like to have the following visual ald
identified as Exhibit B,

{The document referred to
was marked for identifica-
tion as Exhibit B.)

MR, BERNHARD: The Commlssion will indulge our Just
closing out this one for a moment.

This visual ald, now identified as Exhibit B, re-
flects the various parishes from which not only complaints
have been recelved, but from which you will hear oral
testimony during the course of this proceeding. As the
first witness 1s called from each parish, we will point out
the percentage registration figures as well as the potential
reglstration fligures In these parishes.

The next exhibit I would like to have identified
as Exhibilt C, and thils exhiblt is an offlcial form of book-
lets which are used during registration procedure or challeng-
Ing procedure in the State of Loulslana.

{The document referred to
was marked for ldentifica-
tion as Exhibit C.)

MR. BERNHARD: The last exhibit before commencement

of oral testimony I ask to be ldentified as Exhibit D, and

i1t 18 a set of 24 constitutional test cards. So that the
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Commission 1s better gpprized of exactly what the contents of
these are, these are test cards which may be used by the
registrars in the various parlshes to test constitutional
knowledge and literacy of prospective registrants.
| (The document referred to
was marked for identifilca-
tion as Exhibit D.)

MR, BERNHARD: I would 1ik§ to read from one of
them, to give you some idea of what thelr contents are. It
is entitled "Constitutional Test For Registrabtion," and it
reads and I quote: "Applicant shall read to the registirar
of voters and glve a reasonable interpretation of the follow-
ing clauses of the Constitubtlon. The United States .shall
guarantee to every state in the Unlon a republlcan form of
government. The powers not delegated to the United States
by the Constitutlion or prohiblted to it by the states are
reserved to the states respectlvely or to the people. No
law shall be passed to curtail or restrain the liberty of
speech or of the press."

On the reverse of the card there is a statement as
to the legal requirement for registration. It reads:
"Section I (e¢) Article {8) of the Loulsiana Constitution
provides that citizens of this state applying to reglster
as electors and possessing other qualification prescribed

by law, "shall be of good character and understand the duties



26

and cobligations of citizenship under a republican form of
go;rernment,a and 'shail also be able %o read any clause
in this Constitubtlion or the Constitution of the Unlted
States and give a reasonable interpretation thereof.!"

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Mr. Bernkhard, did I under-
stand you to say there were 24 of fthose cards of a simllar
nature except the provision of the Constitubion was different
on each card?

MR, BERN! ARD: That 1s covrect, Mr. Vice Chairman,

That concludes the inltial introduction of documentary
evidence and exhlbits, and we are prepared to commence with
oral testimony.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Thank you, Mr. Bernhard.

Just a moment., I notice a distinguished visitor
has come in, I would like to introduce the Honorable Jack
Gremillion, Attorney General of the State of Louisisna. I
understand you have some of your assoclates and officlals
here., If you would llke to present them, we would be happy
for you %o do so,

MR, GREMILLION: Dean and members -of the Commis-
sion, M. E, Culligan, Assistant Attorney General in charge
of the New Orleans office,

Mr,. William Shuler, Assistant Attorney General.

Mr. Henry Roberts, likewise Assistant Attorney

General.
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Mr. John Jackson, Assistant Attorney General.

Mr., Cleburn Dalton from Baton Rouge, Assistant
Attorney General.

I believe, Dean, you have met most of These gentle-
men personally. I don't belleve we have ever had the
privilege of making the personal acquaintance of the other
members of the Commission.

We thank you for inviting us here, We are here
more or less as observers, and if there 1s any assistance
that we can glve you by way of information, you wlll be
pleased to call on us, and we wlll be very glad to do what
we can.

I might say that we do appreciate the fact that
you reserved thils place, We are very grateful for it, and
some of us willl be here throughout all of your sessions, and
we thank you for your kindness.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Thank you, Mr. Gremlllion,

You may proceed, Mr, Tiffany.

MR, TIFFANY: The flrst group of witnesses will-
be introduced by Colonel Rosenfeld.

COLONEL ROSENFELD: If it please the Commission,
the oral evidence will be presented according to a topical
arrangement, The toples under which a witness testifies

represents a particular experience o which that witness was
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counted. Some of the witnesses obvlously have had experlences
encompassiné more than one topic.

The first toplc on which evlidence wlll be presented is
the requirement exacted by certain registrars to producé regls-
tered voters of the precinet for the purpose of attesting to
the identity of the'applicant, and the first witness to be
called under this toplc 1s the Reverend John Henry Scott of
East Carroll Parish. He will also act as a background witness,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Come around, Mr. Scott.

Will you please hold up your right hand and be sworn?
Will you hold up your right hand?

REVEREND SCOTT: Yes. May I make a statement as I
made to the Commission?

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Or affirmation; I understand.

REVEREND SCOTT: Yes, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right. You have no objec-
tion to affirming.

- REVEREND SCOTT: No objection, I tell the truth. As
a Christian I feel I should tell the truth at all times.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You hold up your right hand.

Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the testimony you are
about to glve will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing
but the truth, so help you God?

REVEREND SCOTIT: I do.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have this seat over here, please,



TESTIMONY OF
JOHN HENRY SCOTT
EAST CARROLL PARISH

MR. BERNHARD: If the Commission please, in referring
to Reverend Scott's testimony, I would like to point out that
Reverend Scott is from East Carroll, that in this particular
parlsh, you will note --

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Point out East Carroll.

MR. BERNHARD: East Carroll i1s right in this portion
of the state. You will observe that the nonwhite age 21 and
over -- that 1s, the colored potentlal Negro voter -- consti-
butes 4,690. The number of colored who are registered is zero;
obviously the per cent over 21 is gzero.

At the same time, whites age 21 and over constitute
2,836, Whites registered are 2,826, and the per cent comes out
that 99.7 per cent of the white 21 and over are reglstered in
East Carroll Parish.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Thank you, Mr. Bernhard. Now,
will you please state your name, your age, and place of resi-
dence?

REVEREND SCOTT: My name is John Henry Scott. My age
is 57.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Where do you live?

REVEREND SCOTT: I live 1n East Carroll Parish.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: How long have you lived there?

REVEREND SCOTT: I have lived there all my 1life.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What is your occupation?
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REVEREND SCOTT: My occupatlon 1s minlster.

VICE CHATIRMAN STOREY: Of what denomination or
church?

REVEREND SCOTT: Baptist, I am pastoring one of
the churches that my great grandfather organized.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How long have you been
pastor of that church?

REVEREND SCOTT: I have been pastoring there since
47,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you give briefly what
your educabtlon is?

REVEREND SCOTT: I would be afraid to say as far
as public school is concerned, I qult school 1n the ninth
grade, but after I entered the ministry, I have been in
school practically every year,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: .Do you hold any degrees?

REVEREND SCOTT: Yes.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What degrees?

REVEREND SCOTT: I hold B.Th.. fromathé.tnited
Theologlcal Seminary. Also I have done work at Leland
College, and I have attended Southern University three years
or In the extenslion work there by the Home Mission Department.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Both of those universities
or colleges are in the State of Loulsiana, are they not?

REVEREND SCOTT: Thatts right.
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VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you own any real property,

any real estate?

REVEREND SCOTT: No more than heir to property,

and my grandfather --

property?

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you own any personal

REVEREND SCOTT: No personal property.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Automobile?

REVEREND SCOTT: Just helr.

Yes, I own an automobile, and I live on the property

of East Carroll Baptist Association on which we pay taxes. I

am thelr president. I represent them.

VICE CHAIRMAN STLREY: The church furnishes your

home?
REVEREND SCOTT: Yes, East Carrol Baptist Associa~
tion.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you a registered voter?
REVEREND SCOTT: No.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you abtempted to regls-
ter -9
REVEREND SCOTT: Many times.
) VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right.
Now, tell the first time and where and the cir-
. cumstances. What happened? Just tell in your own words.

REVEREND SCOTT: Well, the first time that I
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attempted to reglster, that is back in 1946. Another young
man named Reverend Paul Taylor, we decided we would go and
try.

VICE CHAIRMAN STCREY: Did you go together?

REVEREND SCOTT: We went together. He lives in
St. Louls, Missourl now., Well, we didn®*t know exactly
where the regisf;ation office was, so finalily we went up-
stairs, and we got to the door, and I saild, "Paul, here is

the door,"

and we went to the door, and the registrar of
voters say, "Go to the next door." So we went to look for
another door, and when we got back, the door was locked.
So we didn't make any attempt to go in. We give up that
time.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Where was this? What toun
and what parish?

REVEREND SCOTT: That is East Carroll Parish, Lake
Providence, Louisiana.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right.

Is that all that happened on that occasion?

REVEREND SCOTT: That was all that happened on --

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: When did you next try to
register?
REVEREND SCOTT: The next time I tried to register

must have been about two years later, around '47, the

Reverend Mason and I went together.



VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY:
same place?

REVEREND SCOTT: Went
registrar., She was very nice,
When we filled it she lobked at
know where to find yéu ali," or
énd a little later on I decilded
whether I am giving them ln fthe
stating it.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY:
after the second time?

REVEREND SCOTT: Well,
six months before I tried again.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY:
own way.

REVEREND SCOTT: So I

33

Where did you go then, the

to the same place, the same

She gave us the card to fill.
it and said, "Well, we wouldn't
something, so we went out

to go back. I don't know

order, but I am truthfully

I believe Brother Atlas and I went --

About how long was that

maybe it would be a year or

A1l right.

Go ahead 1in your

decided that probably trying

to be a Democrat was making 1t difficult for me to register.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY:
Democratic Party?

REVEREND SCOTT: Well,
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY:
REVEREND SCOTT: So I

card "Republican."

You mean you belong to the

that is the party I wanted to.
All right. Go ahead.

decided tomut on my next

I didn't want to put "Communist" on

there, and so when I put "Republican' on, the registrar of

voters looked in the office, and she picked out a card, and
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she looked at it, and she said, "Well, on this card you
said you were a Democrat. On this card you are saying you
are a Republican."' She said, "What are you?"
I said, "Well, I am not anything untll you register
me."

So she said, "Well, don't you know you can't change
your parbty that fast?"

So I had to go out.

So later on, about '50, somewhere about 1950, I
believe, Reverend Mason and several others went in, declded
to try again, and she gave us all a card, and we filled them
out, and she told Reverend Mason that his was perfect, bub
he would have to get someone to vouch for him or sign,
identify him. All of which he was successful, but that didn't
work, either. In fact --

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Could I ask you, how many
signed recommendations or vouched for him?

REVEREND SGOTT: Well, just one.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right.

REVEREND SCOTT: But they didn't accept that one.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: That was about 1950°7

REVEREND SCOTT: Yes.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What did you do at that

time?

REVEREND SCOTT: I come on out.
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VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you attempt to reglster
again?

REVEREND SCOTT: Yes. Reverend Henderson and I
went together, and she told him his was right, and he was
fortunate to get a white person to go up there that had not
been brought up to the proceedings, and he was turned away,
after he had gone down, and they told him what he should do,
I guess, and what he shouldn't do. That is my thinking,
whathe told Reverend Henderson. I can't fool with that. So
he went away. So we were not able to get anyone to come, and
if we got them, it was to no avail because they had made
thelr mind up not to register anybody. So recently they put
a new man or they put a man in office after our present
registrar resigned or went on retirement, and we thought we
would try him, I believe last September, and several of us
went. .

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How'many.went '&long with
you? About how many? |

REVEREND SCOTT: About five.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right. What happened
then?

REVEREND SCOTT: He asked us how long had we heen
living theré. Most of us had been living fhere all of our
1ife and he said, "Well' -- he handed us a form, he said, "You

will have to get two qualified electoys from your ward and
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precinct to identify you."

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you know the registrar
personally?

REVEREND SCOTT: I didn't know him --

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: And he didn't know you
personally.

REVEREND SCOTT: Yes.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Go ahead.

REVEREND SCOTT: So he didn't reglster. So the
lady that was with me, she said, "I can get two to identify
me." I said, "Well, you think you can, bubt you can‘?." She
sald, "But I know I can,"she saild, "I have some white friends,
and we are all Christians.” I said "But Christians. and
this registration business 1s different. Nobody's a
Christian when 1t comes down to identifying you."

So she went and tried. She said, "Oh, yes, they
say they will go with me Monday," and I thought -- and she
sald, "Well, 1t is Just like you said, they told me that
they couldn't bother with i1t."

So we decided to go back, I belleve, in July,
possibly July 25.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What year?

REVEREND SCOTT: Thils year. A group of us went.

VIGE CHAIRMAN STOREY: ' About how many?

REVEREND SCOTT: About 21.
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VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right. Go ahead. Tell

what happened.

REVEREND SCOTT: So we went in. The registrar of
voters asked us what did we want. We said we wanted to
register. He said, "Do you have anybopdy to identify you?" I
says, "We can identify each other." I said, "We identify
folk at.the bank and at the post office.” I say, "We have
come around and got folks out of jail and signed, went on
their bond." I said, "We be here long enough to be known."

He said, "No, you canft do that. ¥You will have
to have two qualifiled electors from your ward and'precinct,
and you can't take these forms out for them to sign. You
have to bring them to this office." So he asked us, he said,
"Give me your names." One of the men that was with us, he
sald, "Oh, sure, we will give you our name,” and I said,
"There 1s no use in giving you our name, You give us the
card to £ill out, and we will sign our name to the card."

I said, "But we didn't come to sign up. We come
to try to register."

So we could not register. It seemed to be, in my
way of thinking -- and I am sorry to have to appear before
this Commission, I am sorry to be in New Orleans. I never
did think that in America or that a citizen would have to do
all of this for an opportunity to vote.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Now, Reverend Scott, the last
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time you went in July, what was the reason the reglstrar
told you people that you couldn't register? What reason
did he glve?,Because you didn't have these ldentifying
persons?

REVEREND SCOTT: That's right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Now, as I understand, the
law as to ildentity reads this way: "If the register has good
reason to believe that he" -- meaning the applicant -- "is
not the same person, he may require the applicant to produce
two credltable registered voters of his precinct to make oath
to that effect.”

Now, then, did you each time try to get some register-
ed voter to ldentifyy you?

REVEREND SCOTT: I did not because, Reverend
Mason and Reverend Henderson, the effort that they made, 1t
was turned down, and I had a white friend that was on the
police jury at that time, and he told me that it wouldn't be
any use because it was strictly made up not to register any
Negroes,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Now, tell me how long have
you lived in this ecounty? Since what date?

PRESIDENT SCOTT: Oh, I have been there since
1901. That is when I was born. .

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you ever have any

trouble being identified at banks or the courthouse or any
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. other place?

REVEREND SCOTT: ©No. My great grandfather lilved
there, my grandfather lived there; my grandfather was a
minister, and f mean, we are all very well known, everybody.
Someone asked me about coming down here --

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Don't tell about coming
down here,

REVEREND SCOTT: What I was trying to say is that
everybody knows everybody. Y¥You can't -- well, you Jjust can't
hide. When you walk down the street, everybody knows every-
body.

VICE CHAIRMANLSTOREYEY: Well, now, this other ques-
tion. The records show that there are no Negro registrants
in your parish.

REVEREND. SCOTT: That's right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Is that true?

REVEREND SCOTT: That is true.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: According o your own knowl-

edge.
REVEREND SCOTT: That is true.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: The records show that.
) Why do you want to vote?
REVEREND SCOTT: Well, I have always felt like that
. was a responsibility that belonged to the citizens, after

reading -~ even Loulslana history and the Constitution of
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Louisiana and the United States, it say that that belong to
the citlzens, and another thing that I noticed, it always
glve recogniltion; I noticed the streets where they vote, they
were fixed; I noticed the roads where the reojle lived on
where they vote, it was gravel; I noticed the reo; le that
vote, the officers of the law resiected them and treated
them different from the peorle that didn't vote, and after
reading Negro newsrajers, traveling quite a bit, I felt 1like
that 1t was a responsibility, and after my brothers -- which
I didn't go because I was a minister -- went to the Army,
and back there 1ln World War I, when the President was talk-
ing about make the world safe for democracy, and everybody
had the right and privilege to particirate, it always has
been a burning zeal and desire within my heart, and I
have never been able to tell my children the reason why
that Negroes should be treated in such a way or be cast
about.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, now, Reverend Scott,
have you been arrested in your lifetime?

REVEREND SCOTT: No.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do ¥ou know of any
impediment that disqualifies you from voting or reglstering?

REVEREND SCOTT: No.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right. Are there other

questions from other members of the Commlssion? Father
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Hesburgh?

COMMISSIONER HESBURGH: Reverend Scott, have you
ever had any trouble being identified for taxes?

REVEREND SCOTT: I didn't understand.

COMMISSIONER HESBURGH: I say, have you ever had
any trouble being identified for tax purposes? Have you ever
had any difficulty being identified for paying taxes?

REVEREND SCOTT: No; gsir; no, sir. I have an old
poll tax recelpt before they stopped receiving poll tax. I
had 1it.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you ever had any suilt
in connection with voter registration?

REVEREND SCOTT: Yes, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: When and where?

REVEREND SCOTT: In 1951 we filed a suit against
the registrar of voters in East Carroll Parish. Our
attorney from this city filed the sult for us, Louls Barry,
who is out of town. It is quite discouraging. .

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: dJust tell us this. What
happened to the suit?

REVEREND SCOPT: Well,the suit just drug along
until -~ from one court -- not one court to another, but from
one attorney in court to another, on technical grounds. I
believe 1t was in '57, from '51 until '57, and at that par-

ticular time, Jurist Ben Dawkins put us out of his court, saild
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he had no jurisdiction, it belonged to the three-judge court,
and after that our attorney went off to California. So I
don't know. He Jjust dropped the suit or what.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You didn't get any relief
of the suilt.

REVEREND SCOTT: No, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right. Any other ques-
tions?

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: Yes.,

REVET&Na Seott, do you have any sons or relatives
that have served in the armed forces?

REVEREND SCOTT: No. I have brothers. My son
is sti1ll in .school.

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: Do you have brothers that have
been in the armed forces of the United States?

REVEREND SCOTT: I have a brother in the armed force
now; he is in Germany.

| CHAIRMAN HANNAH: He is a native of Carroll Parish?

REVEREND SCOTT: That's right.

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: There are a goodly number of
Negroes in Carroll Parish that are now or have in the past
served in the Army or the Navy or the Air Force or Marine
Corps?

REVEREND SCOTT: That's right. I have two brothers

live there that served in World War II.
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CHAIRMAN HANNAH: Any other questions?

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: I wonder if I could ask
Just one question,.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Dean Johnson?

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: Reverend Scott, as a result
of your rather persistent effort to get registered over a
conslderable period of time, I was wondering, have you ever been
threatened or intimidated because of this kind of activity?

REVEREND SCOTT: Well, slightly, I don't like to
talk about intimidations. I would rather {forget them., I
always felt if a fellow thought he was doing you\some harm or
that he was bluffing you or was upsetting you in your ming,
that he would go further, so I just let it go. They have
told not to say anythiug about it. Well, the officer of law
at that time, sheriff of East Carroll Parish -- I can cazll
his name, .he is out of office now -~- Matt Fowler, and we
had a meeting our -- well, at That time that NAACP was
having a membership drive and had invited Mr, Daniel E,
Byrd to speak for us, and after he‘got to‘town, everything
was so exclted, and they sent for him to come to the Court
House, and they picked me up, and I picked up several other
ministers, and we went to the Court House, and the sheriff
told me come to the office, his office, and donit bring any-
body. So I went down, and they seated me around a table

like that there, and they wanted to know what kind of meeting
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we 'were having. He said he had been called up during the day,
and someone said that somebody was coming there to teach us
how to vote, and I told him no one had to come there to
teach us how to vote, that practically all of us knew how
to £ill out those forms and figure our age correctly and so
on., So the collector of court has passed on now to the Great
Beyond. He was across the table from me, he said, "If you
don't like our way of doing things, why don't you leave here?"

I said, "Well, I was born here, and if I leave
here, I might not like the things that go on where I go, buf
I think that I could stay here and try to help correct some
of the things." So they wouldn't allow us to have the meet-
ing at the school house, and we went to a church. When I
walked out of the sheriffis offlce, he said, "You be
damed sure and tell him don't say anything about voting."

So the next day he picked me up, and he asked me to name some
of the leaders and those that understand how to fill out

those forms. I say, "Is this strictly confidential between
you and I and nobody else?" And he said, "No, I am not going
to promise you that." I said, "I am not going to tell you
the names, either." So then he went on to tell me about going
to start a riot and so on, llke that, he was sheriff, and he
had to furnish protecéion, and he couldn't put up with any-

thing like that. So times moved on.
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I Just go on, go on because I feel like I am right,
and I know where I am golng, I know what I am talking about,
and I don't care what happens. Whatever happens, I got to go
to heaven, and if I go for my people or for the right to vote,
I would be perfectly satisfled, so that the way I feel about it.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: No further questions.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: No further questions.

Thank you, Reverend Scott.

Next witness.

COLONEL ROSENFELD: The next witness, if it please the
Commlssion, is Francis Joseph Atlas of East Carroll Parish.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you hold up your right hand
and be sworn. Do you solemnly swear that the testimony you are
about to give will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing
but the truth, so help you God?

MR. ATLAS: I do.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have this seat over here,
please, Mr. Atlas.

TESTIMONY OF
FRANCIS JOSEPH ATLAS
EAST CARROLL PARISH

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you please give your full
name, where you live, your age, and your occupation?

MR. ATLAS: I am Francils dJoseph Atlas, My age is 55
years old. I live in East Carroll Parish, Lake Providence,

Louisliana, and I am a farmer.
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. VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How long have you been farming?
MR, ATIAS: Well, about 15 or 20 years.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you lived in that parish all
.of your 1life or not?

MR, ATLAS: With the exception of some few years I spent

in school.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Some three or four years?
MR, ATLAS: That's right.
- /
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Other than that you have lived —
there all of your life? -
MR, ATIAS: All of my life.
. VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What education do you have?

MR, ATLAS: Well, I finished the school at that time
knowr: as the East Carroll‘Baptist School, and I went to Tuskegee.
There I finished a trade in brick mason plaster.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: That is Tuskegee Institute at
Tuskegee, Alabama?

MR, ATILAS: That's right

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You completed that course?

MR. ATLAS: That's right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How long did you spend in

) Tuskegee Institute?
MR, ATLAS: Three years. That was the years I was
. absent from Lake Providence.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you belong to any fraternal
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organization, churches? If so, what are they?

MR, ATLAS: I am a Mason, I belong to Progressive
Missionary Baptist Church. I am superintendent of that
Sunday school, ) ’

V.ICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you own your own farm?

MR, ATLAS: I do.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: How big is it?

MR, ATLAS: Well, my own farm is 65 acres, and I
am heir to 113 acres.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You own an aubtomobile or
truck?

MR, ATLAS: I do. Automobille.

VICE CHATIRMAN STOREY: Have you ever been arrested
in your life?

MR. ATLAS: No,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you ever have any mili-
tary service?

MR, ATLAS: No more than Just reglstering to go to
World War XI,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Registered -~

MR, ATLAS: I registered in World War II.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: And were not called?

MR, ATLAS: I was not.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you a registered voter?

MR, ATLAS: I am not.
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VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you ever made any
attempt to register?

MR, ATLAS: I have,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: When was the first time and
tell us the circumstances. |

MR, ATLAS: Well as near as I can recall, the
flrst time we made an effort to register was when the primary
case was broke in Texas and we went before the officials ==
what gave Negroes the right to participate in white e
primaries -~ we went to the officials ‘of the town and ques-
tioned them about that, and they refused us.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you remember about what
year that was? |

MR, ATLAS: Well, as near as I can recall, it was
in 1948,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, did they give you any
reagson for not letting you register?

MR, ATLAS: Well, I would consider them random,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You mean not satisfactory?

MR, ATLAS: That's right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you ever make any further
attemptato reglster?

MR, ATLAS: I did,

VICE CHAIRMAN STbREY: When?

MR, ATLAS: As I can recall, I believe in 1950, we
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went to the reglstration office, and I applled for a regis-
tration card, and the lady gave it to me, and I filled it
out as best I knew how, and she looked at it and saild it was
incorrect. So as I can recall --

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: 1In what respect, did she say?

MR, ATLAS: She did not tell me what.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right.

MR, ATLAS: So I had to leave, so I came back on
another occaslion; what distance that was apart, I donﬁt_
recall,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, about how long, a
year or two?

MR, ATLAS: No, it wasn't a year,'it was right
around a month or maybe two years.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What happened then?

MR, ATLAS: I fllled the card correctly, and she
told me to get three electors to identify me.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you make an effﬁrt -

MR, ATLAS: So I made an effort, I contacted some
I thought was my friends, one man I had been dolng business
with --

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: White or colored? -

MR, ATLAS: White. No colored is registered there,

so I had no ground ==

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did they require that you
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get a reglstered voter to identify you?

MR, ATLAS: That's right. So they told me, one
told me, politics, and he didn't want to have anything to do
with it,- And the: other one say, “Wel}, the position I hold,
I coulén't have anything to do with 1t,"

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did the registrar know you
personally?

MR, ATLAS: Well, now, I really dontt feel safe in
saylng that she know me personally.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: But you went back %o see
her two or three times, did you?

MR, ATLAS: I did. Two times,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Dild you have any trouble
identifying yourself to the bank or stores or anybody else
in your parish? -

MR, ATLAS: Not that I can recall.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Then when is the next time
you went back?

MR, ATLAS: Well, I didn'%t go back any more.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Didn't go back any more.
Have you ever filed a sult or made any further efforts with
any other group?

MR, ATLAS: Well, I was with the group that did

file a sult in 19 -=- I don't remember the exact or what year
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1t was,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Was that the one Reverend
Scott testiflied about?

MR. ATLAS: That's right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You were a party to that
sult?

MR, ATLAS: I was a part of that sult.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you been back this year?

MR, ATLAS: Well, I was with the group, but I
didn't go before the registrar of voters because I had met
so many of them, and they ¥old me the results and I dldn't
see where it was necessary.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You say you were with the
group. When was that? A group when?

MR, ATLAS: That was this last July, July 25.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: July thils year?

MR, ATLAS: That's right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: About how many went?

MR, ATLAS: About 21, as I can recall,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You found out that some of
them couldnt't reglstenr?

MR, ATLAS: That's right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did any of them register?

MR, ATLAS: No, not a one,

VICE CHATIRMAN STOREY: And when 1% came to your
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turn, you just gave up, did you?

MR. ATLAS: I dildn't feel 1like 1t was necessary.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any questions from the Commis-
sion? Father Hesburgh?

COMMISSIONER HESBERGH: Mr., Atlas, did you have diffi-
culty reglstering for the Army?

MR, ATLAS: No, I did not.

COMMISSIONER BESBURGH: Thank you.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other questlons? Why do you
want to vote, Mr, Atlas?

MR, ATLAS: I am a taxpayer. I want a volce in the
government in which I live. I feel that 1s my constitutional
rights;, and I just feel 1like 1t is my responsibillity as a eiti-
zen to take whatever -- if I can share 1t as a taxpayer and other
reasons, I think I should vote.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, thank you.

Any other questions? If not, you may be excused.

COLONEL ROSENFELD: The next witness 1s the Reverend
William J. Neal of Madison Parish.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Come around, Reverend Neal,

Will you hold up your right hand. Do you solemnly
swear or affirm that the testimony you are about to glve wilill be
the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help
you God?

REVEREND NEAL: I do.
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VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you have a seat over there,
please,

TESTIMONY OF
WILLIAM J. NEAL
MADISON PARISH

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Mr. Bernhard, do you want to
identify thils parish?

MR, BERNHARD: Yes. This parish 1s Madison Parish. It
is directly below East Carroll Parish, the parish in which the
prior witnesses reside. You will observe that in this parish
Negro citizens age 21 and over amount to 5,933. There are none
registereA. The per cent is therefore zero. The white age 21 arx
over are 3,160, 2,633 are registered, and the per cent of the
white registration is therefore 83.3 per cent.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you give your full name, you:
age, your occupation and place of resldence?

REVEREND NEAL: My full name 1s William James Neal. I
reside at Tallulah, Loulsiana. My occupation is minlister. My
age is 29. ,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How long have you resided in
Tallulah, Louisiana? '

REVEREND NEAL: I have resided in Tallulah about two and
one-half years.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Where did you live prior to that

time?
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REVEREND NEAL: I lived in the State of North Carolina.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How long did you live in North
Carolina?

REVEREND NEAL: I was there for a period of 9 1/2 years,.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Were you a registered voter in the
State of North Carolina?

REVEREND NEAL: I was not a reglstered voter, but I was
a qualified voter, I had understood, according to the law of North
Carolina; I was 1ln school during the time, and I didn't partici-
pate 1n any of the voting.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you hold any degrees or edu-
cation in higher institutions of learning?

REVEREND NEAL: I hold a Bachelor of Arts degree from
Livingston College.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Which college?

REVEREND NEAL: Livingston, in Salisbury.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right.

REVEREND NEAL: And further degree -- in pursult of the
Bachelor of Divinity at the Hewitt Theological Seminary, of which
I completed 2 years and am now candidate for the Bachelor of

Divinity.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Louisville?
REVEREND NEAL: Hewitt Theologlcal Semlnary at Salisbury.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right. Do you own any per-

sonal property?
REVEREND NEAL: No personal property outside of auto-

mobilles.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you ever been arrested
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in your lifetime?
REVEREND NEAL: I have been arrested.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: For what?
REVEREND NEAL: I was arrested in an accident.
We had a wreck ln the State of Carolina,

VICE CHATIRMAN STOREY: You mean an automobile

wreck?

REVEREND NEAL: An automoblle wreck, yes.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Traffic violation?

REVEREND NEAL: Well, it was a traffic violations
yes, sir.

W&

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, were you pesarilized for

it?

REVEREND NEAL: Well, I don't say that I was
penalized, I mean, I was glven a reprimand on the part of
the Jury.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What I mean is, did you go
to Jail or pay a fine?

REVEREND NEAL: I pald a fine.

YICE CHAIRNAN STOREYs :~How much?

REVEREND NEAL: I think i% was around $20.00. I
didn't have sufficient lights,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Didn't have sufficient
lights.

REVEREND NEAL: Yes,
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VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you ever attempted to
register in your home parish?

REVEREND NEAL: I have attempted to register in
Madison Parish,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: When was the first time?

REVEREND NEAL: My first attempt was made, there
was a group of us in the month of July, of ministers,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: dJuly of what year?

REVEREND NEAL: This year, 1960,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You were with this same
group Mr, Atlas was wlth?

REVEREND NEAL: That was in East Carroll,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: That was in the other
parish; pardon me.

REVEREND NEAL: This attempt was made in Madison
Parish in the month of July., This was an effort drawn out
of an effort that was made by a group previous to my arrival
in Tallulah. There was a group that had made an attempt
in the year 1954 in June, which I think they sti1ll have
records of that proceeding that was held, and the attorney
that represented this case was, I belleve, one of the attor-
neys was Attorney Sharp from --

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You werentt present in the
origingl «-

REVEREND NEAL: I wasn't present at that.
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VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: 1In July of this year about
how many of you were there?

REVEREND NEAL: Five of us.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What did you do, and just
tell in yowr own words what happened,

REVEREND NEAL: As we apoproached the registration;
which is in the Court House, the registrar, we were directed
to go to the sheriff instead of the registrar, and we went
to the sheriff and made known our requests to register, and
he told us, asked the question, weren't we getting along well
enough in that parish, why did we want to register. There
were many varied answers gilven. The one answer that I gave
was as a similar answer has already been gilven here, that
we felt that we were citizens and that we were good clitizens,
taxpaying cltizens, and we saw no reason as to why as we
couldn't or shouldn't register if we could qualify, and then
an argument, rather, a discussion followed, and in this dis-
cussion the question was asked, first of all, as to why we
should have to go to him, of which he said that he admitted
that he would have nothing to do with the registratlion. Then
we sald then our next procedure then would be that we would
go to the registrar, but he told us that 1t was not advisable
for us to even attempt %o go to the reglstrar --

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: This is the sheriff talking?

REVEREND NEAL: Yes -- because, first of all, iV
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wasn't time, the time had not come for Negroes to register
and vote in that parish. Then we asked why., Now, his state-
ment was that, first of all, that the Negro progresses too
fast, one, and the next was that he figured that by the Negro
outnumbering the white of that parish, such per cent as
indicated here, that they would receive %oo much power, voting
power, and he felt that by receiving thils voting power, that
the Negro who would be on these polls would tend to perhaps
sell thelr votes to candidates that would not be pleased or
would not be acceptable candidates to tﬁem, and that was one,
the next reason why he gave as to why he wouldn't advise us
to attempt to register.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Then what did you do?

REVEREND NEAL: We further pursued a discussion,
and in the discusslon we asked what objection would they have
of Negroes registering. He said that for one thing the
Negro has progressed in the last few years of his freedom
wlth what little rights he had, and then we began to mention
certaln things that had taken place in that parish, as he
begin to ask us why we wanted to vote. We related various
reasons as to why we wanted to vote. One was that
Tallulah is known as a village, It is a wide open town. I
have branded 1t personally as Little las Vegas, because we
have open saloons, open seven days a week, some of them 24

hours a day, and they sell whiskey. Many children, many of
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our children, who are minor, go in these saloons. They have
laws to say that no child should enter a place such as that,
but we have not been successful in getting those laws en-
forced, and we wanted those laws enforced so that these
children would not be permitted to go and that anyone who
sold alcohollic beverages to a child would be put out of
business, and that the saloons would respect the law of the
State of Loulsiana, I believe, that maybe have some «-
with regards to opening of these saloons, selling of whiskey
at all hours of the night and all day on Sunday, and the
situation of streets, which is known as buckshot; I think,
mud is known as buckshot mud, and one only has to be around
in the rain -- we have a slogan there that the mud, if you
stlick to it when it is dry, it will stick to you when 1t is
wet, so we want some of the streets paved and sewage put down.

VICE CHAIRMAN 'STOREY: Was all this in convera=
tion with the sheriff?

REVEREND NEAL.: Yes. So that we could have this,
and he advised us that the time wasn't right, that he would
want to first find out the results of some new legislation
that had been passed in Baton Rouge; and after he found out
thls new leglslation as how it would affect us as voters,
and we asked what he mean by affecting us. Then he said the
area dealing wilth rascality, that he thought a great deal

that we would be affected by this rascality section in the
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new &oting requirement for the State of Louilsiana.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, was that the end of
that conversatlon?

REVEREND NEAL: That was the end of that con-
versatlon,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right.,

Now, did you make any further attempt to register?

REVEREND NEAL: We made a further attempt in August.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Of 1960%

REVEREND NEAL: August of thils year,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: About what time in August?

REVEREND NEAL: It was the last Monday.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: All right., What happened,
Tell us where you went and what was sald,

REVEREND NEAL: We made another attempt. We
went to the Court House right after thls election,; and when
we entered this court house -

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Talk up just a little

louder.

REVEREND NEAL: -~ we found that the office was
closed.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You mean the registrar's
office?

REVEREND NEAL: Registrarts office was closed,

and we left.
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VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What day of the week was
that?

REVEREND NEAL: That was on Monday.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right. About what time?

REVEREND NEAL: That was at 10:20 a.m,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right,

REVEREND NEAL: And we came back, several of us had
agreed that we would watch, and when we found the office open,
we would call the others and go back. We did that, I can
only testify what I did, Last Friday I made the last attempt,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Last Friday?

REVEREND NEAL: Last Friday, and the office was
closed, They had a green curtain pulled down there in the
offlce; I mean indicating, I imagine, that the office was
closed, I Indicated to go in, but the door was lockc_-:-d° I
thought maybe the registrar was in recess or something, so
I waited around a few minutes, and no one appeared,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: That is the last time,
Friday of last week?

REVEREND NEAL: Yes.,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you onh a substitute
teacher list?

REVEREND NEAL: Yes,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: That is, in the public

schools?
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REVEREND NEAL: Public schools.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you ever taught any as
a substltute teacher?

REVEREND NEAL: I taught from September of 1958 up
until July.,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Of what year?

REVEREND NEAL: Of 1960.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, what happened then?

REVEREND NEQL% Well, I was told by the principal
that certain technicalities had come up with regards to my
famlly situatlion that I wouldn®t be permitted to teach any
more.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did he tell you what they
were?

REVEREND NEAL: My wife had come down to the
Carolinas wlth me; she had visited Tallulah, Varilous things
had happened; ©She became sick, and I had to send her bﬁck
to the Carolinas, and we have four children, and one of the
children were born there while she was away, and I have been
supporiting her, and they indlcated that my reason for being
taken off the llist was because my wilfe had Indicated non-
support for the children, and I had been sending this money
ever since 1958 -~ 159, pardon me,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You were continuing to sup-

port the children?
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REVEREND NEAL: Yes,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any questions?

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: Do you feel that was the real
reason?

REVEREND NEAL:: I wouldn't want to say that it was
the real reason, and I wouldn't want to say because I don't
have any knowledge of the fact as to whether or not that was
the real reason,

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: How large a community is Tallulah?

REVEREND NEAL: Tallulah, whilch is known as a
village, I would say approximately from 8 to 12,000 population.

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: There are more Negroes than whiltes
in Tallulah?

REVEREND NEAL: There are.

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: That is all.,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Dr, Rankin?

COMMISSIONER RANKIN: Do you think the refusal that
you recelved %o register was due to the purge of Negro votes?
In other words, 1f there had been fewer Negroes in Madison
Parish, do you think you would have had a better chance of
getting registered?

REVEREND NEAL: I donft think even had there been
fewer Négroes there that we would have had any greater chance

of being registered. I think that it was established, accord-

ing to statements that had been given by reliable sources
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that no Negro should ever been registered to vote in that parish.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other question? Father
Hesburgh?

COMMISSIONER HESBURGH: Revercnd Neal; just one point I
was curious about. Are you golng to keep on trying to register?

REVEREND NEAL: I intend to pursue this until my church
sees it to transfer me to some other place. We will continue.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other questions? Thank you.
You may be excused, Mr. Neal. Next witness.

COLONEL: ROSENFELD: The next witness is Mr. James Sharp,
an attorney of Monroe, Loulsiana, who wlll testify with respect
to Madison Parish, Mr. Sharp.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Will you hold up your hand and be
sworn. Do you solemnly swear that the evidence you are about to
give will be the truth, the whole ﬁruth, and nothing but the
truth, so help you God?

MR. SHARP: Yes, sir,

TESTIMONY OF
JAMES SHARP, JR.
OUACHITA PARISH

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you please have a seat.
Will you please state your name, full name, your age, your resi-
dence, and your occupation or profession?

MR, SHARP: My name 1ls James Sharp, Jr.; I am 37 years of

age. I reside at Monroe, Loulsliana, and I am an
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attorney and a businessman.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How long have you lived at
Monroe?

MR, SHARP: I was born in Monroe and have lived
there all of my life except three years in the Army and school-
ing.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right, Are you a reglster-
ed voter in that county?

MR, SHARP: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How long have you been
registered?

MR, SHARPg I have been a registered voter since
on or before the year 1952. I don't remember the exact
date.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Now, how long have you
practiced law?

MR, SHARP: I have practlced, have been 1n active
. practice since April 2, 1952,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you a graduate of any
university or college?

MR, SHARP: I did undergraduate work at Southern
University., I hold an LL.B. degree from Lincoln University
of Migssouri, and I hold certificate in the civil courts
subjects from'the Southern University Law School in Baton

Rouge.
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VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you devote all of yo;r
time to the practice of your profession?

MR, SHARP: VYes, sir; I do, I am a full-time
practitioner of the law.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you own any land?

MR, SHARP: I own my home and considerable other
real estate there in Ouachita Parish.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: I assume you have an auto-
mobile,

MR, SHARPY Yes, sir; that is correct.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did .you serve in the last
war or not?

MR, SHARP: I did three years of active service in
the Army during World War II, having served approximately
two years overseas.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you ever been arrested?

MR, SHARP: No, sir; no more than mlnor traffic
violation.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: I belleve you are a
registered voter. Have you had anything to do with attempt-
ing to register other Negroes?

MR, SHARP: Well, I have. I have participated in
efforts to get them reglstered, and particularly in Madison

Parish,

VICE . CHATRMAN STOREY: Tell what you did with
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reference to your efforts in Madison Parish, In other words,
Madison is different from your home town, isn't 1t?

MR, SHARP: That's correct, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You live in Onachita Parish, .
is that correct? ‘

MR, SHARP: That'!s right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Monroe, Loulsiana, and you
are -talking now about Madison Parish,

MR, SHARF: Right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Go ahead and describe it
and tell what you did as briefly as you can. )

MR, SHARP: About January or February of 1954, a
group of citizens in Tallulah, Madison Parish, consulted me
with respect to the voting situation over there,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Were they colored citlzens?

MR, SHARP: They were colored cltizens. They came
into the offlce and related the fact that there were no
reglsvered Negro voters in Madison Parish and that they
wanted to take whatever steps were necessary to correct
that situatlon, I was officially employed by them and
authorized %o direct them in whatever channels I saw fit %o
see that they were permitted to reglster. I conferred with
them several times in Tallulah and also at my office, attempt-

ing to find out just what the situation was.,

During the month of March 1954 I wrote Mrs. Mary K.
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Ward, who was the regilstrar of that parish at that time, a
letter, That letter is missing from my flle at this time,
but the substance of that letter was that I understood that
there were no reglstered Negro voters and that I wanted to
know maybe what her policy was or what reasonable method
could we use to get tThis matter straightened out. A copy of
this letter was sent to the office of the mayor at Tallulah,
Louisiana, in which I had this to say, It is a very brief
letter. YA copy of my letter to Mrs, Mary K. Ward, registrar
of voters, Madison Parish, will fully explalin the subject
about which I write, In this connection I am expressing my
desire to cooperate with local authorities and hope that we
will be able to quietly adjust the possible problem, I re-
spectfully ask your assistance and recommendations.”

A copy of this letter was also sent to Judge Frank
Voelker, who was the judge of the Sixth District Court there
in Madison Parish at that time.

T heard nothing from the mayor, the registrar, or
the Jjurist, so ==

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What did you do after that%

MR, SHARP: V¥Yes, sir. After that I thought it time
to make a personal visit to the registrar?s office in Madison
Parish.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you go?

MR. SHARP: Yes, sir.
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VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Dld anyone accompany you?

MR, SHARP: ©No, I weut along.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You weilt alone?

MR, SHARP: I went alone,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Whom did you see on that
trip and about when was it? Well, approximately. Still in
the year “5H§

MR, SHARP: Yes, sir, That was during the month
of March or April 1954. I went to the office of the
registrar, and I talked first to Mrs, Mary K. Ward who was
the registrar at that time, .

VICE CHAIRVMAN STOREY: All right. Will you give
the substance of your conversation, both yours and her re-
marks?

MR, SHARP: When I walked into the office, I intro-
duced myselfl to Mrs, Ward as being the lawyer who had writiten
her the letter and that I came to maybe discuss with her the
policy and Just what could be done in regards to getting
Negroes of that parish reglstered to vote. Mrs., Ward told me
she had been registrar of voters for Madison Parish at that
time for 31 years, that there had been no Negroes on her books
registered to vote during those 30 years, and that there were
no Negroes registered to vote in Ouachita, Madison, and East
Carroll Parish, She stated to me that she operated under

orders from the sheriff and other public officials there and
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that she had not seen f£it at that time to permit any Negroes
to register and vote, She suggested that if I cared %o, I
could discuss the matter with the sheriff of Madison Parlsh
who at that time was a Sheriff C, E. Hester.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you discuss 1t with him?

MR, SHARP: I left out of her office at that time,
and I went down the hall into an office which they dlrected
me as being the office of Sheriff Heéterc I walked in the
office, and Sheriff Hester was sitting at the far end of the
room behind a table, and I went on down %o hils desk, and I
looked around, and there were two armed officers, one at
that time was in the doorway and another one standing over
just to his left, near the corner, Sheriff Hester demanded in
a very angry and intimidating fashion that I sit down.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you sit down? -

MR, SHARP: Yes, slir. At that time I followed his
instructions, I sat down.

I was somewhat surprised at the Ilntimidating fashion
in which he went about it, and the officers standing there
with their pistols on seemed to be very solemn, and I wasn!t
able to slze up the situation right then. Sheriff Hester
began at that moment to denounce the administration of Mr,
Truman, and he did seem to express just a 1little more regards
for the adninistration of Mr, Eisenhower, and he told me that

I was sitting on a powder keg, that in effect he said that if
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I pursue what appeared to be my purpose any further, that he
would take me for a ride. He further stated that any efforts
that I would make in that direction I could assure myself
that I would not have any protection whatsoever from his
office,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: 1Is that about all that hap-
pened?

MR, SHARP: That is all what happened in his office
except I was able to get out without any bodily harm, what I
would say, correctly sizing up the situation and being rather
tactful,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Then did anything else hap-
pen at the Court Housé?

MR, SHARP: Nothing else happened there at the
Court House., I did not return. I concluded at that time
that personal contact would not be advisable, and then I went
back and reported the situation to my clients, and very
shortly after then, I believe in the month of June, we filed
legal proceedingéo

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Has that litigation been
terminated?

MR, SHARP:; That litigation has been terminated,
That was the sult of Zelma C. Wyche and others versus Mrs.
Mary K. Ward. It has been terminated, but with no relief %o

the plaintiff,



72

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Was that in the state or
federal court?

MR.SHARP: That was in the rederal court, the Western
District of Lioulsiana, with the Honorable Ben C. Dawklns, Jr,
presiding.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: But the litigatlon has been
terminated but without right of your clients to register.

MR, SHARP: Yes, s8ir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Is that correct?

MR. SHARP: It has been so determined,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you made any further ef-
forts in that particular parish?

MR, SHARP: No, sir; I haven!t made any further
efforts in that parish. Now, I might bring you up on some
of the negotlatlon leadlng up to the filing of this suit.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, unless there is some-
thing unusual, 1t is just the detalis of the suit, Did you
go back to this county any more, this parish?

MR, SHARP: I didn’t go back.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Pardon me, I live -in east
Texas, and I call them counties; parishes over here.

MR, SHARP: No, I didn't go dback, but’I sent my
clients back to prepare this law sult,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you know of anything else
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that bears on that issue in connection with your services as
attorney for these people?

MR, SHARP: No, sir; I don't know anybthing else,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other questions of the
Commission?

CHATIRMAN BANNAH: Not knowing the geography of
Liouisiana, where on the map is Monroe, Louisiana?

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY¥: Will you turn around and
point 1% out, please, Mr, Sharp? Point out Ouachita Parish,
Madison iz "H" there,

MR. SHARP: This is Ouachita Parish here.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: And Monroe is in there,

MR, SHARP: DMownroe would be righ% here.

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: That is all,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other questions?

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: Attorney Sharp, I would
like to ask you Jjust one question. As a lawyer, I am sure you
'are familiar with the legal developments in fhis whole voting
area in Louisiana. Have you apprized the various agencies
that have responsibilities in the votlng area with the prob-
lems that you have met in your efforts to secure relief for
the people in Madison County?

MR, SHARP: Yes, sir. I have apprized that situation
in Madison Parish; also in my home parish, Ouachlta Parish,

It is quite evident that in Madison Parish they have concluded
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not to permit any Negroes to register and vote, and they feel
that they can accomplish that purpose simply in one respect
by requiring that a prospective registrant -- they require him
to be identified by a registered voter in his precinct, and
there are no Negroes registered to vote in the precincts over
there in Madison Parish, and no whites want to identify the
people desiring to register, and consequently it 1s impossible
for them to comply with their request, and as I said here, the
registrar said that there had been none in here for 31 years;
and she iIndicated to me that there was some kind of agreement
between those parishes that there would be none,

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: dJust one other question. You
mentioned that you had taken the matiter up not only with
respect to Madlison Parish, but the parlish in which you live,
What are the special problems where you llve, if they are
different from the problems in Madison Parish?

MR, SHARP: Well, I had personal contact with the
registration situation there in Madison Parish during the
year 1956 when the purge of voters took place there, and
there was a pattern of segregation and discrimination there
in the office which increased the possibility, or, rather,
decreased the possibility --

COMMISSTONER JCHNSON: Are you speaking now of

Ouzachita Parish?

MR, SHARP: Thils 1s Ouachita Parish -- which decreased
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the possibility of those who had been challenged to get back
on the roll., I have numerous calls in my office complaining
about unreasonable requlrements in the interpretation of
certain provisions of the Constitution., I remember distinctly
an elderly lady said that the registrar of voters asked her
what was the legislature, and in her own words she told her -
she saild she told her that the legislature makes the laws of
Louisiana. But she did not accept that interpretation,

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: I have no further questlons,

MR, RANKIN: Have you recelved any intimidation
at all for your activities?

MR, SHARP: I received threats during my partici-
pation in this vote case in Ouachita Parish., There were
several calls telling me to get out of town, that they would
take me for a ride., That would be all,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, thank you very much,
and you may be excused.

At thils time we will take a ten-mlnute recess,

{Recess.)

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Ladles and gentlemen, may
we have order. This announcement: We will recess for lunch
at 12:30 and reconvene at 1330, and may I make this announce-
ment for the benefit of the witnesses. No witness is excused
to leave until he gets permission from Mr, Tiffany, because

you might be recalled or something like that,
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A1l right, will you call, Mr. Rosenfeld, the next witness.

COLONEL ROSENFELD: The next wltness is the Reverend
Philip R. Brown of Ouachita Parish.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you hold up your right hand,
Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the testimony you are about
to give will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
truth, so help you God?

REVEREND BROWN: I do

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have the seat over here, please.

TESTIMONY OF

PHILIP R. BROWN IIXI
OUACHITA PARISH

MR. BERNHARD: If it please the Commission, Ouachlta is
here, or "F", as Attorney Sharp has previously indicated. In this
parish there are 19,692 Negro American citizens age 21 and over.
There are T23 registered, which is 3.7 per cent of the population
of voting age. The whites age 21 and over, 42,511, The whites
registered are 23,804, The per cent over 21 of the whites regis-
tered constitutes 56 per cent.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you please state your full
name, your age; your residenceg and your profession or occupation?

REVEKEND BROWN: Philip R. Brown III. I am 42 years of
age, live in West Monroe, Loulsiana, pastor of the Calvary Mis-
sionary Baptist Chureh and an instructor in the United Theo-
loglcal Semlnary.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How long have you lived in
Ouachita Parish?

REVEREND BROWN: A 1little more than one year and
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one-half,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Where did you come from to
West Monroe?

REVEREND BROWN: ©New Orleans,; Loulsiana.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How long did you live in
New Orleans?

REVEREND BROWN: All of my life,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Were you born here?

REVEREND BROWN: Born in New Orleans,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How long have you been a
minister?

REVEREND BROWN: Since 1937,

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Are you a graduate of any
higher institution of learning?

REVEREND BROWN: I am a graduate of the Union
Theological Semlnary, have the Bachelor of Theology de,g;z;ee°

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Union, 1s that the one in
New York?

REVEREND BROWN: No, sir; that 1s the one here, and
I also studied at Xavier Unlversity.

VICE CHAiRMAN STOREY: All right., Do you happen %o
own any real property or any personal property?

REVEREND BROWN: An automobile, that is the only
property I own.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you ever been arrested?
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REVEREND BROWN: Not for anythlng other than minor
traffic violations,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you ever been a register-
ed voter in the State of Loulslana?

REVEREND BRGNW: I have, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Where?

REVEREND BROWN: In the Clty of New Orleans. I
should like to add, I also conducted here during the year of
1958 a registration drive, I was the promotional director
for six months. We added more than 5,000 people to the rolls
here,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: That is 5,000 Negro voters?

REVEREND BROWN: Nggro voters, that is .correct.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Here in New Orleans?

REVEREND BROWN: That's correct,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How long were you a regilstered

voter in New Orleans?
REVEREND BROWNs About 12 or 15 years,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Were you ever turned down

for reglstration in New Orleans?
REVEREND BROWN: Never was,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you been permitted to

vote freely?
REVEREND BROWN: Regularly and freely,

- VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you a registered voter
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in your present place of residence?
. REVEREND BROWN: I am not.
) VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY3 Have you attempted to register?
REVEREND BROWN: I have attempted.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: When?
REVEREND BReWN: The first--several timeso The
first time was the latter part of July of this year.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right, Tell what
happened and what you did, whom you saw and what was said
by the offiecial and by you:
REVEREND BROWN: Thank you. I was under the lmpres-
’ sion that you needed to be in the parish a year; so after I
o lived in_uuachita Parish for twelve months, I went to the
office of the registrar of voters, and the lady in charge
asked what I wanted. I told her I wpuld like to register,
and I attempted to produce my driverts license and other
personal identification papers that I had. She said that that
would not be sufficient, I would have to bring in two per-
-sons of my ward and precinct who were regilstered voters to
ldentify me, I left and returned the first part of August,
on or aboubt the eighth of August.
) VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: That was this year.
. REVEREND BROWN: This year., I was unable to ge%d

two persons of my same ward and precinct,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you try?
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REVEREND BROWN: I abttempted.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Why couldntt you get them?
REVEREND BROWN: Well, those who were eligible -
by that, they say -- the persons whom I contacted said that
it was thelr understanding that if you identified a person
within a twelve-month period, then you were ineliglble to
identify anyone .else. They would not go with me., One
man who thought he had identified somebody before twelve
months ago did go with me, and we approached the registrar
the second time, and as I went in, she asked if I had the
two people, I Told her I hadn't been able to find buf one,
and then she began %o interview the man whom I brought, and
he told her that he thought he had identified somebody about
eleven months ago, and she said; well, that was not long
enough, he wouldn't be able to lidentify any other person until
after twelve months, and he walked out, and then she said -
to me, "How long have you lived in %Oﬁ;cgita Parish?"
T said, "Well, I have lived here more than a year." The
registrar of voters said, "Well, if you will bring in three
documents or bills or receipts or letters showing your name
and address at this address, then you will be able to register,"
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you do that?
'REVEREND BROWN: I did that. I went back again
on or about the 15th of September,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: That is this month,
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REVEREND BROWN: This month; that is correct. I
brought with me at that time a letter from the Treasury
Department showing that my address had been changed’from
another addres; to an address in Ouachita Parish, and that
document was dated in 1959, 4,/30/59.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREYs What was the next?

REVEREND BROWN: I brought another document, since
she had said three, which was a charge account book from
Sears, Roebuck & Company of Monroe, showing June 23, 1959,

a purchase was made, and a letter from the Secretary of

State, Wade 0, Martin, Jr., of the State of Loulsiana, post-
marked July 1, 1959, addressed to me at my home, But she
would not look at them, She would not look at them, I

%01d her, I said, "The last time I was in, you said if I would
bring three letters or receipts, then I might be able %o
register," She sald, she was sorry, but she was not the person
who had waited on me and that these documents would mean noth-
ing to her, she would have to have two registered voters out

of my ward and precinct,

I said %o her that I had not been able to find any
registered voters who had not identlfied someone else within
the twelve-month period within the ward and precinct, She
said, well, she was very sorry, but that was the law be-
cause she did not know me. So then I said, "Well, thank you

very kindly, but I notice that as I wailted for my turn, the
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registrar waited on five white persons, and nelther of the

five white persons had anyone to identify them." So this

lady said, "Well, evidently she knew them," I saild, "Well,

I am sorry, but she cculd not have known them because she

asked the man and and his wife where they were from., They

sald they were from Shreveport, Caddo Parish, and the registrar
of voters said, 'Well, welcome to Quachita Parish,? and

gave them a card, and they began %o £ill it out."

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: ULet's have order, please.
Go ahead,

REVEREND BROWN: I sald, "And the young man told
her he was from Lake Charles, and she told the young man,
'"Well, put your sisterts address on the card if she 1lives in
the parish.'" I said, "I know she couldn't have known them."

So she said, "Well, I am running the office, you
are not running the office,"

I said, "Thank you, very kindly. What is your
name ?"

She said, "My name?"

I said, "Yes."

She said, "My name," and I understood her to say
her name was Mrs. Morgan, but I later learned her name is
Mrs. Moran, and she said, "This lady," pointing out another
lady, "is Mrs. Lucky., She is the registrar of voters."

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Is that all that happened
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there?
REVEREND BROWN: Yes, I haven“f been able to find
two people yet,
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: And you hgve not registered?
REVEREND BROWN: T have not.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you going to try to
register again?
REVEREND BROWN: I will sry.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you had any trouble
in identification of yourself or making your identlty known
at banks and business houses in West Monroe or Monroe?
REVEREND BROWN: None whatsoever, sir.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: That‘is all, Any other
questions?
CEATRMAN HANNAH: I would like to ask something. You
are the pastor of a church,
REVEREND | BROWN: VYes, sir,
CHAIRMAN HANNAH: How large is the church? Around
how many members do you have?
REVEREND BROWN: We operate on $20,000 a year budget.
OQur membership is not very large, but most of our members are
regulars, I would say we have approximately 250 members.
CHAIRMAN HANNAH: It is a church well known, easily
found?

REVEREND BROWN: Oh, yes; owps .:quite a bit of
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property, brick building, departmentalized church, one of
the first class churches in the area,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other questilons?
Father Hesburgh?

COMMISSIONER HESBURGH: Reverend Brown, how many
of your parishiloners would be regilstered?

REVEREND BROWN: Thank you very kindly. When I
first went into the church, I found that a number of the
parishioners .had been removed from the roll by purges, so
we set up a registration school in the church for the member-
ship, and we have rggistered just about all of our members of
our church through this medium. We have a copy of the
constitution and the voter registration laws and the 16
questlons that we were able to get that they might ask, and
we have two persons who are members of our social action
commlittee who go over the questions of the constitution
with the members, and we have been abie to reglster qulte
a number of them.

COMMISSIONER RANKIN: Is it your impression that
i1f you had two electors to vouch for you, you would have
been permltted to register?

REVEREND BROWN: No, I do not feel that. The
procedure is, whatever you have, it is what you don't have
that you need., That is the procedure, My members are

familiar with it, but I feel if I could have gotten two, then
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I would have been told, "Well what you need to do now is %o
interpret the Constitution,” You see, I dldntt even get to
the filling of the card, you see, and if I had, then that would
have been questioned.

COMMISSIONER RANKIN: Have you heard of any white
people being refused?

REVEREND BROWN: None whatsoever, I haven't heard
of one since I have been there.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN HANNAH: Mrf Brown, you mentlioned before
the purge procedure, and the preceding witness from the same
parish mentioned something about the purge procedure. This
may not be the place in our testimony that fits logically,
but we may not get you back on the stand. I would like to
have you tell me, what do you mean when you say the "purge
procedure"?

REVEREND BROWN: Well; the information I receiyed
from my meébers when I became pastor of the church was that
some two or three years abefore some thousané, 3 or more
thousand, Negroes had been taken off of the registration
roll just before an electlion because they had been challenged
for such reasons as not crossing a "T," not dotting an "I," or
thelr name wasn't in the phone book or something like tha¥b,
and of course they have to appear, you see, to answer this

challenge within ten days. Then they have %o bring with them
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two persons who are on the rolls to ldentify them that they
are the person whom they say they are, and then when they
would bring the two persons, the regilstrar of voters, accord-
ing %o the information given me, would say, "These two people
can®t identlfy you because their challenge is in the mall now;
they will get it tomorrow," and that procedure always fol=-
lowed, so that is why they never did get back. That is
what my members told me,

CHATRMAN HANNAH: Do you have reason to believe that
there were a significant number of previously reglstered
Negro voters in your parish that have been removed from the
voting rolls through this purge procedure?

REVEREND BROWN: Ves, I have good reason to believe
that,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other question? Well,
thank you.

MR, BERNHARD: “Mr., Vice Chalirman, may I ask the
Reverend Brown whether or not he would careto introduce those
three identifying letters into the record here?

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you have any objection?

REVEREND BROWN: None whatsoever,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right, If you will
hand them to Mr, Bernhard, they will be marked for identifica-
tion and made a part of the record.

MR, BERNHARD: I will ask that they be identified as
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exhibilt 2.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: They will be received as part of
the record.

(The documents referred to were marked
for identification as Exhibit No. 2.)

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Call the next witness.

COLONEL ROSENFELD: Mr, Frederic D. lewis of Claiborne
Parish,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you hold up your right hand.
Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the testimony you are about
to give willl be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
truth, so help you God?

MR. LEWIS: Yes, sir.

TESTIMONY OF
FREDERIC DOUGLAS LEWIS
CLATBORNE PARISH

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you have a seat over here,
please. Wr, Bernhard, will you ldentify thils parish and statis-
tical data?

MR. BERNHARD: The parish is Claiborne. It is identified
in purple and marked with the letter "D"., In Claiborne Parish the
Negro citizens age 21 and over number 4,846. There are 16 Negroes
registered in this parish, which comes out to a percent of .3 per
cent. The whites age 21 and over number 5,981. The whites regis-
tered, 5,735. The per cent of whites over the age 21 registered
is 95.9 per cent.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you please give your full

name, your age, your residence, and your occupation?
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MR, LEWIS: My name is Frederic Douglas Lewis,

born in Lisbon, Louisiana, 1905, October 21, I am a member
of the Masonic Lodge, member of the CME Church, and former
district director of Sunday schools for the district.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: What do you do to make a
living?

MR, LEWISs Well, I used %o farm until my health
was such until I had to retire from actual labor.

"VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How long have you lived in
your parish?

MR, LEWIS: I have lived there except a few years
I spent in Ohlo and California. about 50 years, I would say.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you a graduate of any
universities or colleges?

MR, LEWIS: No, sir; no, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What about high school?”

MR, LEWIS: dJunior high,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you had any military
service?

MR, LEWIS: No; sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you own any property?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, heir to about 600 acres.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Talk out so everybody can
hear you. Heir to about 600 acres?

MR, LEWiIS: Yes, sir.
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VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Is that where you farm?

MR. LEWIS: Yes, sir, Claliborne Parish,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: I believe you sald you had
to quit farming on account of your health,

MR, LEWIS: VYes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you ever been arrested?

MR, LEWISs Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you ever been a reglster-
ed voter outsider of Loulsiana?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Where?

MR, LEWIS: California,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: When?

MR, LEWIS: 195Q"and '51,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What were you doing in
California at that time?

MR, LEWIS: Well, I worked as a carpenter and
stone mason, I also worked for an linsurance company,
Howard Insurance,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you have any trouble
registering in the State of California?

MR, LEWIS: No, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you vote in the elections?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, siv, I voted in the state

electlion in 1950 and a couple of primaries in 1951,
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VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you a registered voter
in your home county?

MR, LEWIS: No, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you attempted %o
register?

MR, ILEWIS: VYes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How many times, approximate-
1y?

MR, LEWIS: Approximately about 12 times; more or
less,

VICE CHATRVMAN STOREY: Tell, as well as you can
remember, when you first attempted to register?

’MRO LEWIS: When I first attempted to register --

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: About what year was that?

MR, LEWIS: 1935.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY?3 Tell what happened then,

MR, LEWIS: Well, at the time the poll tax law
had been abolished in 34 and went into effect the same fall,
and so the state officlals lssued notlces that everybody
would go and sign the free poll tax books and get your recelpt.
So I did, and if you don't mind it, I would like you to
make a record; my 1934 and '35 poll tax receipt, and --

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you have any objection to
this being made part of the record?

MR, LEWIS: Not a bitu'
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VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: It will be so done then,

MR, LEWIS: In other words, there was some threaten-
ing remarks made to me by the then sheriif of the parish,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Tell just what was said by
any official.

MR, IL.EWiIS: When he passed us over -- another
fellow in there with me got his also. He asked the question,
he said, "What election do you boys expect to vote in?"

I said, "All of them," |

"Didn't you know this was a white primary?" I
says, "Well, I am going to register as a Democraf, and I
will be eligible to vote in all the elections.” He said,
"Well, I tell you, anybody come in here trying %o vote,
trying to vote in the white primary, is going to get the hell
knocked out of them," I said, "Ves, sir.," I proceeded
down to the registrar’s office, and I filled the blanks,
she failed me, but I don't know what point. She wouldntt
tell me, So that was for that time, 1935. I went back in
1956, which was presidential electlon year, September and
October, and I was told that I had to have two registered
voters from my precinct and ward.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Who told you that?

MR, LEWIS: BRegistrar of voters.

VICE CHAIRMAN ..STOREY: All right,

MR, LEWIS: So I made two trips without anyone %o
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accompany me there. But about the last of October, a few
days before the books were closed, I carried two registered
voters, and she asked -- one was a lady. She asked the lady
how many times had she been in there, and she said one
time, The registrar said, "You can't come in here but one
time." So I stepped across the hall to get the tax assessor
to ldentify me; but he said he couldnft do it. He didn't
give any reason, I didn't ask him., So that was that for that
year,

I make this statement. I spent about practically
half a day around there, and I noticed white people going in
there, two or three or probably half a dozen, and they carried
no one in there to ldentify them, I watched that particular-
ly, and it seemed that they ran into some diffilculty, and she
would point out some things, I don't know what she sald, but
when they got through, they was handed cards to ldentify
them at the polls. And my next trip was in May, June,
of 1958. I was told then that I had to bring somebody in to
identify me, two persons., So I asked her would she acdept
my driverts license, and she said no, I said, "What about
some statement from the bank over there?"

No. Not unless they are going to ldentify you
in person, no written statement.

Well, I went back the next time about May 1959,

and I carried one man with me., I had already been identified
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by one fellow, so I carried him, who was a registered voter,
She asked him how many times had he been in there, He
said two times. And she says, "Well, you can't come in

here but two times,"

and then she turned to me and said,

"T am not discriminating against you now," I said, "Well,
lady, you told the lady that she couldnit come in but one
time, Now you are telling this man that he can't come in
but two times." I says, "I didn’t thlnk the Constitution of
this state varied like that." She says, "Well, it is dif-
ferent in the Constitution and the regilstration rules."

I said, "Is that so? Well, I thought the whole
business was governed by the laws of the State of Louilsiana
and not by cerbain organization," and so she said, "Well,
that is Just that." So I said, "Well, willl you accept my
driver's license and Soclal Security, any other document with
my signature?

She says, "No, it has to be persons.”

So that was 1959. In June 1960 I went back. At
that time she didn't have any blanks., She said, "I don't
think I have any blanks," So we stood there, and she asked the
question two or three times, how many wanted to reglster.

I said three. The third time I sald three, I said, "We
have two vouchers." So she sat down, she got a blank, she
took one name, and she said, "This blank calls for three,"

I said, "Well, I will go get the third one, I know where he
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is," and before I could get started she says, "I am out of

blanks. You have to come back next Thursday," and one man

spoke up and said, "The books will be closed Thursday,"
So she said, "Well, I have:to order some, S0 you

come back Monday," so we didn't go back. We had been there

several times, and I figured that 1t was worthless to keep

going.

VICE CHAIRMAYW STOREY: And that was when?

MR, LEWIS: June 1956,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: That is the last time you - -
tried?

MR, LEWIS: Last time,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Why do you want to reglster |
and vote?

MR, LEWIS: PFirst, I want tvo be a full-fledged
citizen, and we are taxpayers, we pay our taxes, we have no
representation. You take for an example, if some of us
happen to get into trouble with the law, when we are arrested,
we are grrested by a white policeman, and we are indicted by
white grand jury, and we are tried before petty Jjury or
trial jury,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY:; Have you ever been arrested
yourself'?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, I have been arrested.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you ever been convicted?
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MR, LEWIS: No, sir, never been convicted, This
was walking late at night in Shreveport. So you see we
have nobody to represent us, on the jury, school board offilce,
the state legislature, nowhere. All the laws are being
passed we have no voice in, whether 1t is for us or against
us, and I don!'t think you can find many that is for us,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other questions?

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: Just one question., M,
Lewls, is 1it?

MR, LEWIS: VYes; sir,

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: Mr. Lewls, the perlod of
time from 1935 to date is rather lengthy, and you indlcated
that you were intimidated as early as 1935, Have you Qeen
the victim of threats or intimidibionisimce-—-

MR, LEWIS: That is the only time.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: That is all,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other question? Father
Hesburgh?

COMMISSIONER HESBURGH: Mr. Lewis, are you going
to keep on trying now?

MR, LEWiIS: T guess I will, If I don't do that,
I will try to encourage the rest to go. Bubt I will have
something to do with i%,

COMMISSIONER HESBURGH: You believe that the

reasons that you give for wanting to vote that you just
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expressed are worth keeping trying for.

MR. 1IEWIS: You say is 1t worth -- yes, sir. Oh, yes,
it 1s worth keep trying.

COMMISSIONER HESBURGH: You are golng to keep trying?

MR. LEWIS: I am golng to keep trying.

COMMISSIONER HESBURGH: God help you.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: That 1s all then. Thank you, Mr.
lewis.

MR. BERNHARD: For the record, Mr. Vice Chalrman, I ask
that the poll recelpts of Mr. Frederic D. lewls be ldentified as
Exhibit 3.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: It willl be so done.

{The document referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhibit 3.)

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right, thank you. You are
excused.,

COLONEL ROSENFELD: If the Commlsslon please, the next
witness 1s Otha Tillman Lewis, also of Claiborne Parish.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you hold up your right hand.
Do you solemmly swear the testlmony you are about to give willl be
the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth; so help
you God?

MR, LEWIS: I will.

TESTIMONY OF
OTHA TILIMAN IEWIS
CLAIBORNE PARISH

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have a seat. W11ll you give your

full
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name, please, together with your age and where you live and
what is your occupétion?

MR, LEWIS: My name is Otha Tillman Lewils., I was
born in Lisbon, Loulsiana. My age is 46 years, and my occu-
patlion is part-time farming and other odd jobs such as
carpenter and masonry work and factory.

: VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You need to talk just a
little louder so all of us can hear you. Are you related to
the gentlieman who preceded you on the stand?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What relation?

MR, LEWIS: We are brothers,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You are brothers,

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir, |

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you lived anywhere else
besides in your own home parish?

MR, LWEIS: Yes, sir, I lived in Tennessee ..in
and out a few years, and I was in the armed force three years,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: The late war, World War II?

MR, LEWIS: VYes; sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you overseas experience?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir, two years.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Where?

MR, LEWIS: European Theater.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREV: What branch of the semvice
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were you?
. MR, ILEWIS: Quartermaster, Army Quartermaster.
VICE CHEAIRMAN STOREY: Were you in any of the cam-
' paigns?
MR, LEWIS: Ves;, sir., I went in four campaigns.
VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Do you have the little
bronze stars to indicate your service as a serviceman?
TR, LEWIS: Yes,; I have four.
VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Whaw has-bbehtyous:cdupation?
- ¥R, LEWIS: I just went through the ninth grade,
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Ninth grade.
MR, LEWIS: Yes,; sir; elementary school.
. VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you own any property?
MR, LEWIS: I am an helr to some property.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Real estate?
MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir,
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you working on that
property now or not?
MR, LEWIS:; Yes; I amuh
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: So you farm and then do
the odd jobs that you mentioned in addition to farming?
| MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir. When one goes bad, I start
on another,
. VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Have you ever been

arregted?
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MR. LEWIS: Yes, sir, I was arrested once, in
Homer, Loulsiana.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What was it and what happened,
Just as brief as you can,

MR, LEWIS: My sister-in-law asked me to pick up
a radio that she had carried back to a man that didn't give
service, and she wanted to get iﬁ fixed or something and
somehow, she got in an argument or something.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Who got in an argument?

MR. LEWIS: My slister-in-law and the dealer. It
must have been because he appeared to be very angry when we
walked in,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Were you with her?

MR, LEWIS: I went in to get the radio. I wasn't
with her when she was in talking with him,

VICE CHATIRMAN STOREY: All right. What happened?

MR, LEWIS: The man asked why was I here for as I
walked over to recelve the radlo, and I asked him what did
he mean, so he handed me the radio and pulled my collar and
started hitving me in the face and scratching, and so I
didn*t hardly know what to say to him. I hadn't had any
word with him or anything like that, and so for a little
while I didn't know what to do, and finaily I came to myselfl
and started trying to defend myself againstthe attack, and

when I left there, I went to the sheriff office to report it,
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and he sald, "Well there will be another officer in in a

few minutes,"

so preity soon another officer, three more
officers came in, and they came in and asked me what was the
matter, and I told them a man attacked me over there, He
askted me what was I doing in the store. I said, "Well, I
went 1n to pilck up a radio for my sister-in-law." So he
wanted to carry me on to jail; and another officer that went
in there first¥ Jjust saw blood on my face, you know, and he
thought, ‘didn't anything else happen, so he said, "Let
me go and talk with the man," so he went over and came back,
and I guess he saw that I had to defend myself and came back
and said, called me by my name and said I was crazy and he
gsaid if I was going to live there, I would have to learn how
to live.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you have to pay a fine?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir. They handcuffed me and carried
me on %o jail, and I got out on $300 bond. Then I met the
grand jury, and they still held the charge against me, and
I changed my plea from not gullty to guilty, after I saw
that everything was in his favor, and I paid a fine of $35.00
plus costs of 10, Then I pald an abttorney $150,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you ever been arresied
for anything else?

MR. LEWIS: No, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: When you lived up in
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Tennessee were you a reglstered voter?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir; I was.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you vote in the elections
up in Tennessee?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: In what part of Tennessee
did you live?

MR, LEWIS: HNashville, Tennessee,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Nashville?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How many times did you vote
up there, do you remember?

MR, LEWIS: Well, I voted in three presidential
elections starting in 1940, OFf course I vote absentee ballot
from Europe.

VICE CHAIRMAW STOREY: Absentee ballet from Europe?

MR, LEWIS: Ves, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: When you went in the service
were you a resident of Tennessee then?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir, I was then.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Then under the Armed Services
program you voted absentee ballot; is that right?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you a registered voter

in your home parish?



102

MR. LEWIS: No, sir; I am not.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you attempted to register?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREYs When and how many times have
you attempted to register?

MR, LEWIS: Twice,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right, Tell when and
what happened each time,

MR, LEWIS: Well, the first time was in June of
1959. I had been informed that it took two registered voters
to identify you, so there were very few there in my ward, So
one registered voter told me that the registrar told me she
couldnit identify again. So I got one man to go with me, and
I took my Army discharge record with me, and I asked her if
that would answer for one person. She sald no, 1t takes
two registered voters,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Was this an honorable dis-
charge from the United States Service?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir, an honorable discharge.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: I belleve you .sald she told
you you had to have two registered voters from your own pre-
cinct, is that righv?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Or ward.

MR, LEWIS: Ward, Yes, sir; I believe "ward" she
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said.

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Did you ever attempt to
register any mpre?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What happened then?

MR, IEWIS: This was around last of May or first
of June in 1960,

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: Thils year?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir. I carried two registered
voters with me, and she said, she asked me when we walked
in, "What could I do for you?" I said we would like %o
register, She said, "How many?" So I said, "I want %o
register,” and then someone elsé spoke and said, "Three of
us want to register."

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY:; Did you go with the other
people or not?

MR, LEWIS: VYes, sir, I was with three others,
first two registered voters.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: In other words, you took
along two registered voters to identify you, is that correct?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right.

MR, LEWIS: So she begun looking for blanks, and
she had some yellow pads like this with leaves in i%, and

she finally came out with one bogk, and she asked me what was
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my name., and I gave my name, and she took the name of the two
that were going %o identify us, and she saild, "Well, i% takes
three." She said, "These forms call for three." So my
brother spoke and said, "Well, I can get the third one."

Then she said, "I don't believe I have the right blanks." She
gaid, "You will have to come back, I will have to order some."

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: These two that you took along
with you, were they registered voters in your own ward?

MR, LEWIS: VYes, sir; they wers.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: White or colored?

MR, LEWIS: They were colored,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Anything else happen then?

MR, LEWIS: No, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you been back since
then?

MR, LEWIS: No, sir.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you expect to go back
again?

MR, LEWIS: Well, I hope to go back, and if there
is any improvement at the registrar's office, I certainly
would go back.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other questions?

COMMISSIONER HESBURGH: Did you have any trouble
getting identified when you joined the United States Army?

MR, LEWIS: No, sir, I got a greeting from
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President Roosevelt.
CHATRMAN HANNAH: I would like to ask a question
that was asked the other witnesses. Why do you want %o
register and vote? |
MR, LEWIS: Well, we used to have what we call
orientatlon when we were overseéas, when we had a little time,
and we discussed all the things that was worth fighting for,
or worth dolng whatever had to be done, and we felt 1like
that, you know, if we made a -- we could have a chance %o
register and vote and all, we can get to help %o get people
in that is willing to do what is right. If a white man at-
. tacks me, well, TtThen arrest both of us. Then I feel like
that I have a zright to, you know, my choice of candidate, and
this fact, if we are good enough to fight, we are good enough
to register.
COMMISSTONER RANKIN: Could I ask you where you
voted in Tennessee?
MR, LEWiIS: Where? 1In Nashville, Tennessee.
COMMISSIONER RANKIN: Davidson County?
MR, LEWIS: VYes, sir.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other?
COMMISSIONER HESBURGH: Have you paild taxes all
. your 1life?
MR. LEWIS: Taxes?

COMMISSIONER HESBURGH: Have you paid taxes all your
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life?

MR, LEWIS: Yes, sir.
COMMISSIONER HESBURGH: You are going to keep trying?
, MR. LEWIS: Well, I hope to.
B VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right. Thank you, Mr. Lewis.
Next witness.
- COLONEL ROSENFELD: If éhe Commission please, the next
testimony will be evidence bearing on the application of the
Louisiana statute which requlres a prospective voter to estab-
lish his identity and resldence, and the flrst witness will be
Dr. C. O. Simpkins of Caddo Parish, Dr. Simpkins is a registered
/§oter and will give the background of the voting slituation in
Caddo Parish.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right, come around, Doctor.
Hold up your right hand and be sworn. Do you solemnly swear the
’ testimony you are about to give will be the truth, the whole truth
and nothing but the truth, so help you God?
DOCTOR SIMPKINS: I do.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have a seat, Doctor, will you,
please.
TESTIMONY OF
DOCTOR CUTHBERT O. SIMPKINS
MR. BERNHARD: Mr, Vice Chairman, I would 1like té
identify where the parish is. It is letter "A" over in the ex-
treme northwest tip. The figures in this parish, the Negro
. citizens age 21 and over are 47,668. The number of colored

who were reglstered is 4,735, coming out with a per
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cent of 9.9 per cent of those eliglble To vote, at least by
age.

The white citizens age 21 and over number 92,228,
57,39A are registered, and the per cent is therefore 62.2 per
cent. Thank you.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you please give your full
name, your age, your residence, and your occupation or pro-
fession?

PR, SIMPKINS: I am Cuthbert O. Simpkins. My
occupation, a dentist. Residence, 1508 Gary Street, Shreve-
port, Loulsiana.

VICE CHAIRMAN _STOREY: How long have you lived in
Shrevepori?

DR, SIMPKINS: Since 19 and 42,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Where were you born?

DR, SIMPKINS: I was born in Mansfleld, Loulsiana.

VICE CHAIRMAY STOREY: And did you move from Mans-
field to Shreveport?

DR, SIMPKINS: I moved from Mansfield to Shreveport.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: And you lived there since
that time?

DR. SIMPKINS: Since that time, except the time I
was in school,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Where did you go %o school

and what degrees d4dld you receive, 1f any?
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DR, SIMPKINS: I attended college at Wiley College
in Marshall, Texas, Then Tennessee State College in Nash-
ville, Tennessee, Then Meharry Medical School in Nashville,
Tennessee.

VICE CHAIRMAW STOREY: What degrees have you re-
ceived?

DR, SIMPKINS: Doctor of dental surgery,.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Doctor of dental surgery?

DR, SIMPKINS: Dental surgery.

/  VICE CHAIRMAN STOREV: Vou graduated from college

f"
./ : '
before you took your professional work?

DR, SIMPKINS: I dld the requlred work, the require-

ments for -~

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right. How long have
you been practicing your profession?

DR, SIMPKINS: Simce 1948,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you have any service in
the late World War?

DR, SIMPKINS: I served in the Korean War,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: For how long?

DR, SIMPKINS: For %two years.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: In what branch?

DR, SIMPKINS: The Air Force.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: And what rank or positilon

did you have?



109

DR, SIMPKINS: I was service captaln,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Service captain. Were you
practicing your profession in the Korean War?

DR, SIMPKINS: I was practicing my professlon,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Specilalizing in that.
Were you up on the front?

DR, SIMPKINS: I was in the United States. I was
unfortunate not to go overseas,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: In other words, you were
in thé Korean War, but in the States all the Ttime.

DR, SIMPKINS: In the States,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY¥: How long have you been a
registered voter?

DR, SIMPKINS: Since approximately 19 and 53.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you have any difficulty
in registering at the time?

DR, SIMPKINS: I didn®t experience any at the
time,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: V¥You didntt experience any.
Now, in connection with your acquaintance and your activities,
have you attempted to assist others in registering in your
parish?

DR, SIMPKINS: Well, we have attempted to get other
people to register in the parish, After I came out of service,

around 1953 or 1954, I decided to run for the school board,
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seeing the need of representation on the school board, and
at that time, well, I ran for office, and I didn't win, I
was defeated, but the election showed me twe or three different
things. 1I% showed, one, that white people as well as Negroes
would vote for a gqualified person. Number two, It showed
the need of more Negroes; more registered voters, It pointed
out those two things, and then we got busy and tried to get
more registered voters. We worked through the civic organl-
zations and Tthrough the churches, and as more people went
down, the greater the resistance became., At first there was
no difficulty at all, But as more people went down to exer-
cise the privilege to register, the difficulties began %o
increase,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You say "more people." you
mean the Negroes?

DR, SIMPKINS: Well, more Negroes,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, now, will you jus%®
describe within your own knowledge what the difficulties
were and what was done and what happened,

DR, SIMPKINS: Well, one of the chief diffiéulties,
the first one we encountered was one of figuriné your age in
years, months, and days correctly.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What difficulty is there
about that? Will you illustrate or tell us what the problem

was?
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DR, SIMPKINS: Well, on the registration form, it
is blank ==

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: W1ll you look at one of the
forms? -

MR, BERNHARD: This is marked Exhibit C, Is that
an accurate copy of the registration form LR-1?

DR, SIMPKINS: This is correct.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right, go ahead and
describe what you are talking about,

DR, SIMPKINS: Well, on the form here it has a
place for, "I am now," blank years, blank months, and days of
age, and if that is not filled correctly, it will be turned
down,

- VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Well, you say if not filled
correctly. What problem was there about it? What was the
discussion? What were the facts?

DR, SIMPKINS: The fact was, you had to figure your
age. If you are born in 1900 on December 25, something like
that, you had %o figure how o0ld you were and the number of
years and how many nonths and how many days. Well, some
people experienced difflculty in that, and we began %o set up
clinlecs to instruct people how to figure out their age. Soon
they began to overcome this difficulty. Then there was
another difficulty of the part of the blanmk that says "The

name of the householder at my present address is." Well,
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some people would place that the shouseholder was the husband,
but there was some difference of opinion there, and the
registrar seemed to want them to place there the person who
owned the place, but to a person who is rooming, renting, it
was ¥ind of confusing, and they were disqualified on this
pariticular thing. Then another difficulty they had -=

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You say some were dis-
gqualified on that point?

DR, SIMPKINS: Because of this,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Were any disqualified be-
cause the blanks weren't filled out as to the age, the year,
the month, and the days?

DR, SIMPKINS: Quite a number were disqualified
untlil we began vo set up these clinles and to instruct them
in that%, and after we got over that barrier, there came
ancther ome,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right, Go ahead,

'DR, SIMPKINS: Then after we got this one straight,
we had another one with ldentity. That is, you had to
prove your identity to the satisfaction of the registrar.

In other words, any identification that you would.carry down,
it might not be what she would accept. 1In some cases she
would azecept-one thing, the same thing for one person, and
turn it down from ancther person. For example, we have had

people go down with rent receipts dating back three and four
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years, federal tax, withholding statements, bills where
they made purchases, bank entries .where they made deposits and
where they made withdrawals, all of this, some had birth
cersificates, and some had birth certificates of where they
gave birth to children and where they had prenatal care and
postnatal care and the birth cerfificate of the baby which
was over g period of twelve years, Thils in a lot of cases
was turned down, S0 you can see the problem of identity came
up later. Some people registered and some reglsters were
delayed or slowed down. Many people went back, as reportved
to me, as many as eight times before they really became
registered voters.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What is the present situa-
tion as to the registration of Negroes in that parish?

DR, SIMPKINS: Well, just a few months ago we had
another voter registration drlve there, and we have had a
group of people to go down. It had been the practice of the
office to give identiflcation cards -- glve the card where
you were a registered voter upon satisfactory filling out.
the blanks. But now the policy appears that they mail you
the form, mail you the certificate of registration, and a
lot of the people who went down in this drive, which has been
now over 45 to 60 days, have not received their --

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: How many have go down in that

partlcular drive that you are talking about?
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DR, SIMPKINS: On Monday of that day., approximate-

1y 51 went down, and the next day, approximately 120, 125,
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: When was that?
DR, SIMPKINS: About two months ago.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: About two months ago. Have
any of those been registered?
DR, SIMPKINS: Well, we have a report that only
two of the group received theicardsa Others have called
on, and they have inquired as to why or the status of their

rquest for reglstration, and were told that they made Just

one 1little mistake, and they asked what that was, they wouldn®t

tell them,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: You understand that two have
actually recelved thelr registration certiflcates?

DR, SIMPKINS: To the best of my knowledge two have
received them.,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Is your interest purely
from the standpoint of civic improvement to help train voters
so that they could regilster and meet the qualification?

DR, SIMPKINS: That®s right., I am the president of
the United Christian Movement, and we have in it a lot of
ministers and a lot of laymen, and they have set up clinics
in their churches and different civié organizations to en-
courage people to go down to register, and the only diffi-

culty they would have had, whenever we have increased the
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number of people going down, the resistance lncreases,
opposition increases, and there is actuzally a slow down.

It slows down prccess of electlon.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any othgr questions? Mr,
Chalrman?

CHATIRMAN HANNAH: I would like to ask a question,
You say that when they called about their .registration
notice, they were told that they had failed in some small
particular, but they were not told how they falled. Did I
understand that correctiy?

DR, SIMPKINS: That i1s correct. ' They weren't told
how they were falled or anything about it.

CHATRMAN HANNAH: Even when they specifically
asked the registrar what kept them from being successful,
this information was never given to theﬁ, Just a blank state-
ment that you failed.

DR, SIMPKINS; Never given to them. Just you
failed,

VICE CHAIRMAN STDREQ%:rFaﬁher‘Hbsﬁurgh?

COMMISSIONER HESBURGH: I was Just curious, Dr.
Simpkins, do the white registrants have To -produce all of
these same affidavits and so forth? Have you had any compari-
son between the way white registrants are treated and the
Way =-

DR, SIMPKINS: Well, 1t has been impossible to
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really compare, but I am quite sure, 1f you had had the
same difficulty, you would have far more complaints than you
have now,

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: Dr. Simpkins, just one ques-~
tion. You say it is impossible to compare., Why?

DR, SIMPKINS: Well, it 1s impossible to compare
because the practice is now only two people can get in the
registrar's office at a time, and also, it is impossible
to actualiy compare because we do not have the knowledge
of white people being actually turned down. We actually
know that they are being registered, and the number of white
people registering is increasing daily., Only two days ago
g hundred persons regisfered, it was stated in the paper,
over a hundred,

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: Are your registration offices
segregated?

DR, SIMPKINS: No, they are not segregated.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: One other question. You
indicated that as you step up your interest in this voting
situation, the resistance to voting lncreased.

DR, SIMPKINS: Yes, sir,

COMMISSTONER JOHNSON: Resistance to registration.
Because of your own actlvity, have you ever been the vietim
of intimidation or threats?

DR, SIMPKINS: Well, we have recelived gquite a few
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of those phone calls and the like; when I ran for school board

I received quite a few.

COMMISSIONER JOHNSON: That is all.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other questions? Thank you,
Doctor Simpkins.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Next witness.

COLONEL ROSENFELD: The next witness is Dorothy Loulse
Jackson of Caddo Parish,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you please hold up your right
hand. Do you solemnly swear the testimony you are about to give
will be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth,
so help you God?

MS, JACKSON: Yes.

TESTIMONY OF
DOROTHY LOUISE JACKSON

A}

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have thils seat over here, please.
CWill you please glve us your full name, your age, your residence,
and your occupation?

MS. JACKSON: My name 1s Dorothy Louise Jackson.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: I believe you will have fo talk
out Jjust a little louder,

MS. JACKSON: My name 1s Dorothy Loulse Jackson. I live
in Shreveport, Caddo Parish, and I am 28 years old.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What is your business or pro-
fession?

MS. JACKSON: My business, I am machlne operator and
part time beautician.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: What is your education?

MS, JACKSON: I completed high school education; also

I have completed the course of beautician.



VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Then you are a machine
operator in a garment factory, and you do some beauticiant's
work in spare btime.

MS, JACKSON: That'®s right,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you own any real property?

MS. JACKSON: Just I am buyling some properiy.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Is that your home?

MS. JACKSON: That's right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: In other words, you are like
a lot of the rest of us, you are paying for your home?

MS, JACKSON: That's right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: But you have title to it,

I assume you are unmarried, are you not?

MS., JACKSON: No, I am not marriled,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you ever been married?

MS, JACKSON: I have,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you a registered voter?

MS., JACKSON: No, I am not.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you attempted %o
register?

MS, JACKSON: I have,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: More than once or not?

MS., JACKSON: Twice.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you tell about the

first time and what the circumstances were and what happened?
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MS., JACKSON: Well, the first time I went %o
attempt to regilster was the latter part of July of this
year, With me I carried a slip, letter from Dales,
Jewelers and Furnishers tﬁat the manager wrote me for identl-
fication, and a lady ahead of me also carried a 1ébter from the
same place, and when she went in to register, the gentleman
to0ld her that he had accepted the letter from a lady ahead
of her and he couldn’t accept more than one letter,. so when
she came out and told me that he wouldn't accept her lebtter,
then I didn't attempt to use mine. Then I went and called
my sister; and I asked her to bring me my beautician license.
She brought me my beaubticianer license for '57 and for '60,
but she didn'‘t bring the ones for 1959. So I went back again
that day.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Same day?

MS, JACKSON: Same day, and I went in to use my
beauticlaner license for identificatlon., She %told me that
the 57 was too old and the '60 wasn't old enough, so then I
left the office. On the following day I went back again, I
carried my ‘00 license. I got to the office kind of early
that morning and lat%er up come the registraz;o Then after that
a white man came up, and he opened tﬁe door and walked 1n.
Then she informed him that the office wasn't open, so he
walked out, Then after a few mlnutes after 9:00 that morning

she pulled the curtaln and the two of us, two other ladies and
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I, we started ln; we was there first so we started in. She
told us to get hack out the door because the white man was
in there first., Then we stepped back outside the door and
waibted until he went in. He went in and took another fellow
that had come up during the time that we was standing out there
waiting, He went in, and I noﬁiced that when he was fllling
out his card that the fellow was talking %Yo him, and he point-
ed on this card with his pencil -- simply what was said, I
don't know. Then when they came outy; the two of us went in
again, I presented to her -- she asked me what was I in there
for, I presented to her my '60 beauticianer license. Then
she gave me the card to £ill out, I filled the card, and
when she began reading bthe card she said that, why did I
put "machine operator" on my card if I was a licensed
beautician. I told her that I did machine operating full
time, and I was only doing beauticianer as a part time job.
Then she told me, ..she say why did I put in the blank where
I put household. ~owner, I put my name. She said, "Well,
it would be better for you to go down and get a homestead
exemption to get registered, So I didn*t do that because
the property wasnit signed in my name.

VICE CHAIﬁMAN STOREYs: Was that the last of it?

MS., JACKSON: That was the last of it.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you made any further

attempt?
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MS. JACKSON: ©No, I haven't.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you expect ©o?

MS, JACKSON: I expect to.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you going to keep on
trying?

MS. JACKSON: That's right.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Why do you want to vote?

MS, JACKSON: T feel that I am a citizen of the
United States, and I should be a registered voter.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other question, Mr.
Chairman? Any other?

Thank you very much,

MR, BERNHARD: WMr. Vice Chairman, may I ask Miss
Jackson whether or not those are her two licenses that you
presented?

MISS JACKSON: These are the licenses, also the
letters from Dales, Jewelers and Furnishers,

MR, BERNHARD: Do you need your 1960 beautician
license in order to operate?

MISS JACKSON: Well, I could =-

MR, BERNHARD: Would you object to introducing or
allowing us to introduce into evlidence the remainder of the
letters and your old beautician’s license?

MISS JACKSON: No, I don't,

MR, BERNHARD: I would therefore ask the Commission
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to identify those letters and 1957 beauticiant®s license as

Exhibit Number 4.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right. It will be so done,
and she will retain the 1960 license.
(The document referred to was marked
for identification as Exhibit No. 4.)
MR. BERNHARD: May I Jjust ask, is the 1957 license the
same or identical to the 1960 except for the date?
MISS JACKSON: Well, except from the date the address
was echanged.
MR, BERNHARD: Thank you.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: The form is the same,
MISS JACKSON: The form 1s the same, but the addfess was
changed.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right. Hand them to Mr.
Bernhard, please. Mr. Rosenfeld.
COLONEL ROSENFELD: Next 1s Reverend Harry Blake of
Caddo Parish who is a background witness.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you hold up your right hand.
Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the testimony you are about
to glve will be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the
truth, so help you God?
REVEREND BLAKE: I do.
TESTIMONY OF
HARRY BLAKE
CADDO PARISH
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Will you have .thils seat over
here, please, Reverend Blake. Will you kindly give your



123
name, full name, your age, your residence, and your occupa-
tion?

REVEREND BLAKE: My full name is Harry Blake., My
age is 25, My residence is 2121 Woodward Street, Shreveport,
Louisiana, Caddo Parish, My occupation is clergy,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you giving your full
time to the work of the clergy?

REVEREND BLAKE: Ves, I am., I have two part-time
churches,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: I see, But between them
you devote all of youﬁ time?

REVEREND BLAKE: Between them I devote my time;
along with some time, too, this area of voting and registra-
tion, /

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Thig area of voting or
registration, are you doing that as a public service?

REVEREND BLAKE: Well, not as a public service,

I would say, I am employed by the Southern Chrlstian leader~
ship Conference,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: I see. You are one of the
paild officers of that conference?

REVEREND BLAKE: Yes, I am,

VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: And you carry it along with
your mlnlilsterial duties?

REVEREND BLAXE: I do.
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VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right,
Now, tell what you do with reference to your vot-
ing activities, and just give the background of it and what
) you have done and what your efforts are and how you train
them.,
REVEREND BLAKE: Well, we try -« along with the
United Christian Movement in Shreveport. However, my work
is broader than Just Shreveport. We try to increase
Negr; voter registration by helping the persons in certain
areas to overcome whatever difficulty has been encountered.
As has been indicated by Dr, Simpkins, at different times
the difficulties vary. There are times when we have helped
. people to figure thelr ages, and we try %o help them to secure
proper ldentification and so on.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Are you, yourself, a
registered voter?
REVEREND BLAKE: I am,
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How long have you been
registered?
REVEREND BLAKE: Since about 1955,
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: In Caddo Parish?
REVEREND BLAKE: 1In Caddo Parish,
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: All right. What ‘isuccess have
. you had in your training and efforts to get people registered?

REVEREND BLAKE: Well, I don't know 1f I can state
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the success, but we have helped any number of people to go
down, However, this last voter registration drive which was
during the month of July ==

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Of this year?

REVEREND BLAKE: Of this year, 1960 -- very few
people were registered. However, we had more than a hundred
odd to go down to attempt to register. Very few that I
know of have receilved cards,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: How many have received them,
do you know?

REVEREND BLAKEs I cannot be exact as to specifical-
ly how many, but I do know at least two have.

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Have you worked with
Dr. Simpkins in this activity?

- REVEREND BLAKE: Yes, I have,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Do you have any further
information that would throw light on this problem there,
based onh your experience, elther as a minister or working
for this particular cause?

REVEREND BLAKE: During the month of July of 1960,
at which time the voter reglstration drive was beingz conducted,
I was on the Court House lawn and in the lobby of the first
floor, seeking information from Negroes who came in to
register, and the information was in this wise, to see

whether they had proper identification so as not to slow down
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the line if they did not and to help those who might have

encountered difficulty in figuring their age.

Being in the lobby, a policeman whom I had previous
encounters with came into the lobby and~asked why were ve
there, I was there along with perhaps two other young men
who were college students, who were home for the summer. We
t0ld him we were attempting to help the Negroes to register.
He %0ld us that we could not hold our office in Tthe lobby of
the Court House room, and if we wanted %o help, we could go
up on the third flopr, and the third floor is where the
reglstration office is housed, and he stabed, I quote, "If
they permit you to stay up there, then it is all right."

Then he left us and went into the sheriff office
or police -- the sheriffis office, We immediately left the
lobby of the Court House and went to the third floor,
Shortly afterward the policeman, Badge Number 166, came up
and went into the registrarfs office, and shortly -- may I
say immediately =~- a lady came out of the registrar's
office and asked were we there to be registered. We said
no. Then she said we could not remain on this third floor
of the Court House, and if we dld not leave, she would have
us arrested, Of course, having been previously told that
we could not remain in the lobby, and belng now told that we
could not remain on the third floor, we vacated the building

and went on the outside. This was late afternoon of the first
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day, and the second day I returned to the Court House alone.
I wa3 there, I would say, approximately thirty mlinutes or
maybe longer. The registrar, along with a policeman -~ a
policeman who works in the Caddo Parish department that I
cannot identify -~ and another man came and said to me,
"Blake, what are you dolng down here?" I sald my reasons for
being there, and they asked did I not know Tthat there were
clisy ordinances agalinst loitering, and then he went To quote
the section that it 1s found and asked me to leave the
grounds of the Court House or I would Ee arrested and charges
would be pressed,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Dld you leave?
) REVEREND BLAKE: I left immediately.
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you have any further
incidents of that type?
REVEREND BLAKE: Of course I did not .go back to

the Court House any mors. This policeman Badge 166, I

was arrested by him once driving along the street,

VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: When, since that time?

REVEREND BLAKE: Before that time. Before that
time. He stopped and s2id to me that he wanted to talk and

) began to scarch me and asked me did I have the key to my

trunk of the car, and I opened 1% and showed him what was back
. there. I had some books, I, incidentally, had a volume of

Shakepearts incomplete works, I showed it to him and asked
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- REVEREND BLAKE: That was the close of that
incident. However, I had ©to meet court, and I was focund
guilty of careless and reckless driving. The officer
reported that I was cutting in and out of traffic. When he,
approached me, I was standing still, however,
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Did you have to pay a fine?
REVEREND BLAKE: I appealed the case, and even
after that I had to pay a fine,
VICE CHAIRMAN STOREY: Any other questions?
REVEREND BLAKE: May I add this, sir? That same
officer, 166, has -- I have been driving down the main street
of Shreveport more than once, meeting him, and he would turn
around in the middle of the street to drive behind me or
drive up beside me and stop'me and tell me to get out of
town and don't show up.
VICE CHATRMAN STOREY: If there are no other ques: «
tions, we wlll stand 1n recess for an hour, Be back at 1:30.
(Thereupon, at 12:35 p.m., the meeting was

recessed, to reconvene following lunch.,)



